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Clean watercourses for successive generations and
a living environment in harmony with water

311 waste water
treatment plants

99 % complied with
all applicable standards

1,690 pumping stations
and storage settlement tanks

6,120 km of pipes
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Aquaﬁn works towards
streams and brooks
full of life and a living
environment in harmony
with water.

Foreword

Foreword
For Aquaﬁn, 2017 was a year that saw several major changes.
Firstly, by its approval of the asset management protocol,
the Flemish Government has now granted us more autonomy
than before to deﬁne for ourselves projects designed to
keep our infrastructure in good condition. This will enable
us to carry out even major renovation projects more quickly
in future, by including them in the budget for asset
management. As the assets age, the need for replacement
and renovation also grows, leading to a constantly
increasing budget for this kind of investment.
The approval of the subsequent costs protocol has also
given Aquaﬁn greater certainty regarding the charging
of project costs following delivery to the Flemish Region.
Since our management agreement with the Flemish Region
does not specify how these costs should be treated, this
presented a risk to their charging to the water companies.
Together with the Flemish Region, we also made a decisive
step last year regarding the reimbursement of our operating
costs. The budget model, which makes the budget for our
activities dependent on a series of packages, the assets
and the pollution load treated, was originally approved by
the Flemish Government in 2013. Following a review and
calibration, the adjusted formula received ﬁnal approval in
the autumn of 2017.
Furthermore, our supra-municipal responsibilities were
renewed through the approval of the 2018 Optimisation
Programme. Like the previous programme, this new
programme also has a total value of 230 million euros for
the development and optimisation of the treatment
infrastructure.

Once again in 2017, we achieved excellent results for our
core business of treating domestic waste water. Of the total
of 305 treatment plants assessed, 302, or 99%, complied
with all applicable standards. Moreover, we used some 20%
less chemicals than the previous year in the treatment
process. A key factor to this result is a revised method of
calculating removal percentages, which we agreed with
the Ecological Regulator in 2016 and which was applied in
the case of excessive dilution of the waste water by rainwater.
This means that we consume less chemicals during wet
periods, while achieving just as good an ecological outcome.
However, we are convinced that we can still offer society
much more added value. To this end, we apply our knowhow
and infrastructure where we can to meet society’s
requirements. When water resources came under pressure
during the extremely dry spring of 2017, we made our
treated waste water available to agriculture and industry.
Finally, Aquaﬁn has also made great strides in research into
the role that a treatment plant can play in the development
of heating grids. The waste water collected contains residual
heat from showers and washing machines, for example,
which can be recycled to heat buildings. The initial plans for
applying this in high-end redevelopment of certain sites
have now been ﬁnalised. This brings water treatment as a
recycling plant a step closer.

Erik Matthijs
Chairman
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About Aquafin

About Aquaﬁn
HISTORY
Aquaﬁn was established by the Flemish Region in 1990 in
order to implement the EU Urban Waste Water Directive.
Since the treatment of waste water in Belgium is a regional
matter, Aquaﬁn is responsible for the development,
management and funding of the regional sewage treatment
infrastructure. The company was established under the
Law of 26 March 1971 on the protection of surface waters
against pollution (Wet op de bescherming van de oppervlaktewateren tegen verontreiniging).

SUPERVISION
The Flemish Environment Agency (VMM) supervises
Aquaﬁn’s activities through two regulators. The Financial
Regulator provides advice on the investment and
optimisation programmes and budgets. It also audits
delivered projects. The Ecological Regulator audits Aquaﬁn’s
operating results and checks these results against the
applicable treatment standards.

FINANCE AND INVOICING
Every year, the Flemish Region funds projects for
implementation by Aquaﬁn under the Optimisation
Programme. Following delivery to the contractor, Aquaﬁn
submits the project to the Financial Regulator from the
Flemish Environment Agency for delivery to the Flemish
Region. Delivery to the Flemish Region means that the costs
incurred are approved and Aquaﬁn has a contractual right
to their repayment, spread over the next 15 (electromechanics) or 30 years (construction engineering). In future,
the proportion repaid over 15 years will increase. Since its
establishment, Aquaﬁn has taken over several existing
plants whose electromechanical components are due for
replacement. Such replacements come under the asset
management portfolio.
The water companies are obliged by decree to treat the
water they supply. They enter into an agreement for this
with Aquaﬁn, which assumes the task of treatment for them.
Aquaﬁn invoices the water companies for the investment
costs over the speciﬁed term, along with the company’s
operating costs.
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The water companies pay part of Aquaﬁn’s invoices via a
grant from the MINA fund, topped up by general tax
revenue. They pass on the remainder, currently around 60%
of the total bill, to consumers according to the principle of
“the polluter pays”.
The Flemish Region is a co-debtor in this invoice ﬂow.
As Aquaﬁn’s investment expenditure is repaid spread over
a period of time, the company has to raise ﬁnance for this.
Long-term ﬁnancing for a project is only possible once it
has been delivered to the Flemish Region, because only
then is the company sure of spread repayment. These longterm investments therefore involve no construction risk for
the investor. Aquaﬁn covers short-term ﬁnancing during
the implementation of a project with commercial paper,
lines of credit and general corporate purpose ﬁnancing.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
AND ALLOCATION AGREEMENT
Aquaﬁn’s tasks are set out in a Management Agreement
between the company and the Flemish Region. This is a
20-year rolling agreement which speciﬁes that, besides
developing and managing the treatment infrastructure,
Aquaﬁn is also responsible for ﬁnancing this.

An allocation agreement exists between the Flemish Region,
Aquaﬁn, the European Investment Bank and Belﬁus Bank
(formerly Gemeentekrediet), with Belﬁus Bank acting as
agent. The agreement stipulates that, should Aquaﬁn ﬁnd
itself in ﬁnancial difficulties, the water companies will no
longer have to pay Aquaﬁn for the treatment of the drinking
water supplied by them, but Belﬁus Bank. As the agent for
the allocation agreement, Belﬁus Bank will then pass on
the sums to the investors on the (interim) maturity dates of
the ﬁnancing agreements. According to the allocation
agreement, the outstanding credit balance Aquaﬁn has
with the water companies must always be greater than the
debt under the allocation agreement (the allocation ratio).
The statutory auditor checks this ratio before each
arrangement of ﬁnance under the agreement and conﬁrms
this to Belﬁus Bank. In turn, this bank communicates this
allocation ratio to the investors. It is also important for
investors for delivered projects to know that, according to
the allocation agreement, any changes to the Management
Agreement with a ﬁnancial impact must ﬁrst be submitted
to them for approval.
In order to participate in the allocation agreement, the
investor ﬁrst signs an agency agreement with Aquaﬁn and
Belﬁus Bank.

About Aquafin

MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES
Besides the projects Aquaﬁn carries out for the Flemish
Region, as speciﬁed in the Management Agreement,
the company also uses its knowhow to help Flemish
towns, cities and municipalities fulﬁl their
environmental obligations. In this market, Aquaﬁn
competes with other sewer operators, water companies
and intermunicipal partnerships. Aquaﬁn invoices
the municipalities with which it has an agreement for
the cost of municipal projects. This ensures that the
costs and income for activities for the Flemish Region
and those for the municipalities are kept separate.

Infrastructure managed on behalf of the Flemish Region
as at 31 December 2017:

311 waste water treatment plants
1,690 pumping stations and storage settlement tanks
6,120 km of pipes

99%
of waste water treatment plants
assessed complied with all applicable
standards at the end of 2017.

KEY FIGURES
2017

IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS

Operating income
Profit available for appropriation
Balance sheet total
Capital and reserves
Short-term financing
Long-term financing

2016

310,624
9,742
2,760,215
280,212
158,124
1,941,014

309,586
8,162
2,775,960
278,258
207,869
1,881,873

1,057
60
1,117

1,008
63
1,071

IN NUMBERS

Aquafin employees
Flemish Environment Agency employees
Total employees

PROJECTS IN PORTFOLIO FOR THE FLEMISH REGION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017:

Number of projects

Delivered
Awarded and contracted out
In design phase
Total

3,042
424
874
4,340

Value (millions of euros)

3,812.94
500.62
929.15
5,242.71
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Report of the Board
of Directors
Aquaﬁn is a knowledge based company creating
real added value for nature and society.

Report of the Board of Directors
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BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

ASSETS

Note

2017

2016

Non-current receivables Management Agreement

5.0

2,500,524

2,541,048

Other financial assets

5.1

32,177

37,104

2,532,701

2,578,152

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Current receivables under the Management Agreement

5.0

170,441

142,245

Trade and other receivables

5.2

39,087

31,313
16,992

Other current financial assets

5.3

8,876

Cash and cash equivalents

5.4

9,110

7,259

227,514

197,808

2,760,215

2,775,960

Total
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Issued capital

5.5

248,400

248,400

Group reserves

5.6 & 5.7

31,574

29,618

Minority interests

5.6 & 5.7

Total equity

237

240

280,212

278,258

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans

5.8

1,787,136

1,736,651

Other non-current financial liabilities

5.9

238,521

278,501

Provisions

5.10

9,903

7,893

Pension liabilities

5.11

Total

27,057

24,713

2,062,617

2,047,758

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

5.12

92,458

83,113

5.8

312,003

353,091

Other current financial liabilities

5.13

7,537

7,829

Tax payable

5.14

5,389

5,911

Interest-bearing loans

Total
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

417,386

449,944

2,480,003

2,497,702

2,760,215

2,775,960

Report of the Board of Directors

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
OVER 2017
Note

2017

2016

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Services rendered

6.0

310,624

309,586

310,624

309,586

6.1

4,406

9,111

Raw materials and consumables, services and other goods

6.2

-148,924

-154,474

Personnel costs

6.3

-74,628

-70,444

Depreciation, write-downs, provisions

6.4

-4,732

-1,518

Other expenses

6.5

-7,797

-7,967

Financing costs

6.6

-96,900

-107,629

Financing revenues

6.7

27,916

31,870

Income
Other operating income

Profit before taxes from continuing operations
Tax expense

6.8

Passing on of tax expense via Management Agreement receivables

6.8

Profit from continuing operations
NET PROFIT

9,964

8,536

-6,191

-3,931

5,969

3,557

9,742

8,162

9,742

8,162

9,744

8,172

-2

-10

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests
EARNINGS PER SHARE (IN EURO)
Basic earnings per share, to be allocated to holders of ordinary shares in the parent

6.9

9.73

8.15

Diluted earnings per share, to be allocated to holders of ordinary shares in the parent

6.9

9.73

8.15

6.9

9.73

8.15

6.9

9.73

8.15

EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (IN EUROS)
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations, to be allocated to holders
of ordinary shares in the parent
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations, to be allocated to holders
of ordinary shares in the parent
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
OVER 2017
Note

NET PROFIT

2017

2016

9,742

8,162

UNREALISED INCOME
Recyclable:
Net increase in the value of cash flow hedges

5.9

35,874

-27,638

Charged on via Management Agreement receivables

5.9

-35,874

27,638

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

5.11

-627

-4,476

Charged on via Management Agreement receivables

5.11

627

4,476

9,742

8,162

9,744

8,172

-2

-10

9,742

8,162

Non-recyclable

TOTAL REALISED AND UNREALISED INCOME AFTER TAX
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
Equity to be allocated to equity holders
of the parent
Issued capital
Group reserves

As at 1 January 2017

248,400

Profit for the year
Realised and unrealised income
Dividends
As at 31 December 2017

Minority interests

Total equity

29,618

240

278,258

9,744

-2

9,742

9,744

-2

-7,788
248,400

31,574

9,742
-7,788

237

280,212
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
Equity to be allocated to equity holders
of the parent
Issued capital
Group reserves

As at 1 January 2016

210,900

Minority interests

Total equity

29,848

240,748

Profit for the year

8,172

-10

8,162

Realised and unrealised income

8,172

-10

8,162

Capital contribution

37,500

Dividends

37,500
-8,402

-8,402

Minority interests
As at 31 December 2016

250
29.618

240

278,258

CONSOLIDATED CASH-FLOW STATEMENT (IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
OVER 2017
Note

2017

2016

-147,377

-150,060

-74,628

-70,444

477,743

482,015

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Revenue from customers
Corporate tax paid
Net operating cash flow

7.1

-6,713

-2,178

249,025

259,332

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions under Management Agreement receivables

-187,947

-162,832

Net investment cash flow

-187,947

-162,832

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Financing revenues
Financing repayments
Interest paid
Revenue from capital contribution
Dividends paid
Other investment transactions (net)
Net financing cash flow
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

155,276

107,923

-145,880

-150,462

-69,276

-77,110

0

37,500

-7,788

-8,402

8,441

-5,611

-59,227

-96,162

1,852

338

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE START OF THE PERIOD

7,259

6,920

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

9,110

7,259
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE GENERAL
MEETING OF AQUAFIN NV FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017
As required by law and the Company’s articles of association,
we report to you as statutory auditor of Aquaﬁn NV (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”).
This report includes our opinion on the consolidated
statement of the ﬁnancial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated statement of the realized and un-realized
results, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash ﬂows for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the disclosures (all elements
together the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) and
includes as well our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements. These two reports are considered one report
and are inseparable.

• Basis for the unqualiﬁed opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Our
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements” section of our report.
We have complied with all ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Belgium, including those with respect of
independence.
We have obtained from the Board of Directors and the
officials of the Company the explanations and information
necessary for the performance of our audit and we believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the
shareholders meeting of 18 April 2017, in accordance with
the proposition by the Board of Directors following
recommendation of the Audit Committee and on
recommendation of the workers council. Our mandate
expires at the date of the shareholders meeting that will
deliberate on the annual accounts for the year ending
31 December 2019. We performed the audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group during
7 consecutive years.

• Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

As part of the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, and provide, if applicable, information on
matters impacting going concern, The Board of Directors
should prepare the ﬁnancial statements using the going
concern basis of accounting, unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease business operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

• Unqualiﬁed opinion
We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Aquaﬁn NV, which consists of the consolidated
statement of the ﬁnancial position as at 31 December
2017, the consolidated statement of the realized and
un-realized results, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash ﬂows for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the disclosures, which show a consolidated balance
sheet total of € 2.760.215 (000) and of which the
consolidated income statement shows a proﬁt for
the year of € 9.742 (000).
In our opinion the Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Group give a true and fair view of the consolidated
net equity and ﬁnancial position as at 31 December 2017,
as well as its consolidated results and its consolidated
cash ﬂows for the year then ended in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”) and with
applicable legal and regulatory requirements in Belgium.

preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS and with
applicable legal and regulatory requirements in Belgium
as well as internal controls relevant to the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

• Our responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements
Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial
Statements based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Report of the Board of Directors

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to inﬂuence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate to the Board of Directors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and signiﬁcant audit ﬁndings, including any
signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

As part of an audit, in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and we maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also perform the
following tasks:

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion,
we are also responsible for directing, supervising and
performing the audits of the subsidiaries. In this respect
we have determined the nature and extent of the audit
procedures to be carried out for group entities.

- Identiﬁcation and assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, the planning and
execution of audit procedures to respond to these
risks and obtain audit evidence which is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting material misstatements is larger
when these misstatements are due to fraud, since
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;
- Obtaining insight in the system of internal controls
that are relevant for the audit and with the objective
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;
- Evaluating the selected and applied accounting
policies, and evaluating the reasonability of the
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Board of Directors as well as the underlying
information given by the Board of Directors;
- Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Director’s
use of the going-concern basis of accounting, and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to event or
conditions that may cast signiﬁcant doubt on the
Company or Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on audit evidence obtained
up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company or
Group to cease to continue as a going-concern;
- Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and
content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
and of whether these ﬁnancial statements reﬂect
the underlying transactions and events in a true and
fair view.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

• Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
and the content of the Board of Director’s report on the
Consolidated Financial Statements and other information
included in the annual report.

• Responsibilities of the auditor
In the context of our mandate and in accordance with
the additional standard to the ISA’s applicable in Belgium,
it is our responsibility to verify, in all material respects,
the Board of Director’s report and other information
included in the annual report, as well as to report on
these matters.

• Aspects relating to Board of Director’s report and other
information included in the annual report
In our opinion, after carrying out speciﬁc procedures on
the Board of Director’s report, the Board of Director’s
report on the Consolidated Financial Statements is
consistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements
and has been in prepared accordance with article 119
of the Belgian Companies Code.
In the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, we are also responsible to consider whether,
based on the information that we became aware of
during the performance of our audit, the Board of
Director’s report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements and other information included in the
annual report contain any material inconsistencies or
contains information that is inaccurate or otherwise
misleading. In light of the work performed, we do not
need to report any material inconsistencies. In addition,
we do not express any form of reasonable assurance
regarding the individual elements included in the
annual report.
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• Independence matters
Our auditor’s office and our network has not performed
any services that are not compatible with the statutory
audit of the Annual Accounts and has remained
independent of the Company during the course of
our mandate.
The fees related to additional services which are
compatible with the statutory audit of the Annual
Accounts as referred to in article 134 of the Belgian
Companies Code were duly itemized and valued in the
notes to the Annual Accounts.
Diegem, 3 April 2018
Ernst & Young Bedrijfsrevisoren BCVBA
Statutory auditor
Represented by

Patrick Rottiers
Partner*
* Acting on behalf of a BVBA/SPRL

Report of the Board of Directors
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MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
LEGAL DISPUTES
• Deurne waste water treatment plant - collapse of
dividing wall
In September 2012 a dividing wall collapsed at our waste
water treatment plant in Deurne, between the anaerobic
basin and an aeration basin. The collapse resulted in
major property damage. As this also disrupted the
operation of the sludge dryer and extra chemicals had
to be added, Aquaﬁn suffered a substantial operating
loss as well.
Aquaﬁn took the initiative of requesting the involvement
of a court-appointed expert. He was tasked with bringing
about the recommissioning and repair of the plant, as
well as investigating possible causes. In 2013, the courtappointed expert granted permission for the plant to be
repaired, which has since taken place. In the course of
2014, further investigations were carried out into possible
causes.
At the end of September 2015, the court-appointed
expert submitted his preliminary report. In this report,
liability was assigned as follows: 85% liability for the
contractor (80% due to defective execution and 5% due
to inadequate supervision) and 15% (supervision) for the
engineering company. In his ﬁnal report dated 15 April
2016, the expert assigned the liability as follows: 65%
liability for the contractor (60% due to defective
execution and 5% due to inadequate supervision) for
the contractor, 20% (15% supervision and 5% for design)
for the engineering company, 10% (5% inadequate design
guidelines and 5% for working with too high a water
level during operation) for Aquaﬁn and ﬁnally 5%
(inadequate checking of design) for the inspection body,
Seco. As a result, Aquaﬁn incurs a risk of around
200,000 euros.
Aquaﬁn then instigated legal proceedings in June 2016,
calling on the court to uphold the original division of
liability. Indeed, Aquaﬁn denies any liability with regard
to either design or operation. In the course of the expert
investigation, the company put forward arguments
on several occasions, which, in our opinion, were not
sufficiently refuted by the expert.

On 21 February 2018, the lawyers argued the case in court.
A judgment can be expected in the next few months.

INSURANCE CLAIMS
• Waste water treatment plant Deurne - insufficient
concrete reinforcement
At the water treatment plant in Deurne, it was discovered
in 2007 that, due to a design error, the walls of certain
aeration basins were insufficiently reinforced. This loss
is partially covered by Aquaﬁn’s CAR (Contractors’ All
Risks) insurance policy and partially by the professional
indemnity insurance policy of the engineering company
concerned. Both insurers actually paid out.
The amount that was not covered by the CAR insurer
was recouped in 2011, partly from the engineering
company that made the design error and partly from
the inspection body operating on the site. In 2013 a
substantial part of the remaining amount was recouped
from the engineering company and its insurer.
The inspection body and its insurer stated that they
were prepared to provide compensation for part of the
remaining loss, with no admission of liability. So far,
Aquaﬁn has not accepted this offer, since this payment
is conditional on Aquaﬁn waiving all other claims against
the inspection body on this site. In view of the
aforementioned legal action concerning the collapse of
the dividing wall at this plant, Aquaﬁn is not prepared
to do so. A provision has therefore been set up for this
part of the costs.

CLOSURE OF PERFORMANCE BUDGET
2014-2015-2016
Following the closure of the 2013 ﬁnancial year in
accordance with the provisions of the Management
Agreement at the end of 2016, we also expect it to be
possible to close the 2014 to 2016 ﬁnancial years by the end
of this year. Although an agreement was reached with
the Flemish Government regarding the application of the
performance budget for the 2017 operating budget in the
second half of the year, formal approval has not yet been
received from the Flemish Government for the period
2014-2015-2016.
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DELIVERIES AND SUBSEQUENT COSTS
Following the delivery of a project to the Flemish Region,
Aquaﬁn may receive further invoices from third parties in
relation to such projects (referred to as ‘subsequent costs’).
These invoices can still be submitted to the Flemish Region.
However, the features of these invoices (the period after
delivery, the nature of the invoices and the estimate of
the amount) are not speciﬁed in sufficient detail in the
Management Agreement. For these reasons, the regulator
conﬁnes itself to a strict administrative interpretation of
the Management Agreement. Aquaﬁn and the Flemish
Region reached agreements on a subsequent costs protocol
at the end of 2017. The wording was approved by the
Flemish Government on 22 December 2017. In essence,
agreement was reached on the period during which such
costs are submitted, deviations from the planned
subsequent costs, exceptions to both rules and the way in
which a ﬁle is submitted.

Based on the guidelines of the protocol, Aquaﬁn reviewed
the invoices rejected for such costs for the period 2014-2017
and resubmitted them to the Flemish Region. The provisions
allocated for this were withdrawn and partially applied.
These re-submitted costs were approved subject to the
condition speciﬁed below, so that the majority of the
disputed subsequent costs for the period 2014-2017 could
still be charged to the water companies. The costs which
were not recouped under the new arrangements were
charged against the result. However, the Financial Regulator
was granted the right to withdraw this approval based on
an ex-post assessment.
Additionally, 16 ﬁles amounting to 24.7 million euros were
delivered via regularisation by Minister Schauvliege in 2017,
following which they were ﬁnally delivered to the Flemish
Region. These ﬁles were not approved by the Financial
Regulator initially, for administrative reasons. The projects
were ready and operational.
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MAIN EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
CALIBRATION OF THE REMUNERATION MODEL
On 7 June 2013, the Flemish Government approved the
model for the annual funding of Aquaﬁn’s operating costs
in the form of a trial model. This model is better known
as the performance budget and is used to calculate the
operating costs for the years of 2014 to 2016 inclusive.
In 2017, Aquaﬁn revised the budget formula, in close
consultation with the Flemish Environment Agency.
The new formula has a clear link to the core processes
followed by Aquaﬁn on a daily basis and also guarantees a
more stable result than the original formula.
On 20 October 2017, the Flemish Government approved
the revised budget formula. In this formula, the budget for
operating costs under the Management Agreement is related
to factors including the pollution load treated, the assets
managed, the ﬂows handled and the investment budgets.
A series of ﬁxed packages are added to this. The budget
calculated is a total budget for Aquaﬁn as a whole, without
creating partitions between packages, or between personnel
costs and other operating costs.
Using this new remuneration model also means that
Aquaﬁn must be able to demonstrate a pre-deﬁned
efficiency gain annually. In 2017 this ﬁgure stood at 1.5%,
a target which we also met.

2018 OPTIMISATION PROGRAMME 2018
FILLS UP ORDER BOOK
In 2017, the Flemish Government assigned a new
Optimisation Programme to Aquaﬁn for the development
and optimisation of the supra-municipal treatment
infrastructure. The investment budget for the OP2018 was
set at 230 million euros, 130 million euros of which for the
implementation of the Local Pact with the municipalities.
The sum of 100 million euros was allowed for new supramunicipal projects. A further 50 million euros was made
available for investment and renewal programme overruns
from programme years up to and including 2009.

NEW PROCEDURE FOR INVESTMENTS
IN EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE
The Management Agreement between Aquaﬁn and the
Flemish Region does not set out a procedure for the
replacement and improvement of the existing infrastructure.
However, there was the ‘Procedure for replacement
investments and miscellaneous investment budgets’,
which allowed limited investments of up to 500,000 euros.
Since this procedure was no longer adequate to meet the
requirements, the Flemish Government approved the ‘asset
management protocol’ in July 2017. This contains a speciﬁc
procedure for carrying out asset management projects up
to a value of 2 million euros to keep the infrastructure
in good condition. This means that we can carry out this
kind of investment faster, with less formalities and in
due consultation with the Financial Regulator. In 2017,
Aquaﬁn carried out 21 million euros worth of asset
management projects. This amount will continue to rise in
the coming years.

PARTNERSHIP WITH WATER-LINK RENEWED
Since 2011, Aquaﬁn had a participating interest in rio-link, a
partnership with water company water-link. This interest
represented one third of the total number of shares in rio-link.
In June 2017, Aquaﬁn renewed its cooperation with a new
subcontracting agreement, coinciding with the sale of
Aquaﬁn’s shares in rio-link. The agreement runs for 15 years.

CUSTOMERS OPT FOR AQUAFIN’S EXPERTISE
ONCE MORE
The city of Aalst and the municipality of Hoeilaart both
renewed the agreement for the management of their
sewer systems by Aquaﬁn for three years. Bornem and
Beernem also signed up for renewal from 2018 for periods
of 5 years (renewable by 5 years) and 10 years respectively.
The municipalities of Wezembeek-Oppem and Kraainem
became partners in Riopact, the partnership between
Aquaﬁn and De Watergroep. On 31 December 2017,
104 Flemish municipalities were customers of Aquaﬁn,
either directly, or via one of the partnerships with a water
company (rio-link or Riopact).
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MAIN EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No signiﬁcant events occurred after the ﬁnancial year which could have an impact on the company.

INNOVATION AS A DRIVER OF DEVELOPMENT
Ever since Aquaﬁn was established, research and innovation
have always held an important place in the company.
By developing the expertise required for innovative supply
chain solutions, Aquaﬁn aims to tackle the current and
future challenges in the waste water sector. The company’s
research strategy is based on three major pillars: integrated
water management, recovery of energy and raw materials
and improving the reliability and performance of the
treatment infrastructure.
Nationally and internationally, Aquaﬁn is a valued research
partner for academic institutions and research institutes.
The company therefore often participates in research
subsidised by Europe.

For example, Aquaﬁn is currently a partner in the European
Impakt! project which will run until 2019. In this crossborder project, Aquaﬁn, the Dutch water board De Dommel,
the Flemish Environment Agency and Infrax cooperate
to further improve the ecological status of the Warmbeek
and the Dommel.
The research budget that Aquaﬁn receives from the Flemish
Region covers small-scale research studies with small pilot
plants and the necessary measuring equipment. However,
once a research project moves from the pilot phase to
full-scale application, Aquaﬁn has to call on ﬁnance under
the Optimisation Programme or the asset management
programme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At the end of the 2017 ﬁnancial year, the balance sheet total
amounted to 2,760 million euros, 16 million euros lower
than the previous ﬁnancial year.
Non-current receivables under the Management Agreement
decreased compared with the previous ﬁnancial year.
Firstly, there was an increase in receivables with respect to
investments in the waste water treatment infrastructure,
commissioned by the Flemish Region. In 2017, for example,
109 investment and optimisation projects with a total contract
value of 143.7 million euros were delivered. Twenty-one million
euros worth of replacement and modiﬁcation investments
were also made within the asset management portfolio.
Secondly, there is an increase in the fair value of ﬁnancial
instruments as at the end of December 2017. The Group
uses derivatives to hedge interest rate risks arising from
ﬁnancing activities. The (less) negative market value of the
hedging structures is included under other non-current
ﬁnancial liabilities. Since ﬁnancial charges are reasonable
expenses under the Management Agreement, the equivalent
of this liability is recognised as a component of current and
non-current receivables under the Management Agreement.
Other ﬁnancial assets include the fees still to be invoiced for
services performed outside the scope of the Management
Agreement.
The provision for liabilities and charges relates to legal
disputes, insurance claims, disputes relating to the
performance of the Management Agreement and
processing of the sludge buffered in the plants.

The long-term funding under the Management Agreement
is based on the allocation agreement. That stipulates that
the balance of the long-term loans must be smaller than
the claims that the Group has on the water companies and
the Flemish Region as co-debtor. These claims consist of
the unpaid part of investment projects that have already
been delivered. Taking into account all long-term loans
– under allocation, with a general or commercial purpose –
and the repayment of loans already drawn down, the
balance of long-term bank loans amounts to 1,941 million
euros, including the part that is to be repaid within one year.
In the ﬁrst half of 2017, the Group took out almost 205
million euros worth of new long-term loans.
The short-term loans showed a decrease from 208 million
euros as at the end of 2016 to 158 million euros as at the
end of 2017. Within the ‘commercial paper’ programme
worth 500 million euros, short-term loans were taken up
for 154.5 million euros. Only 3.6 million euros was drawn
down under existing credit lines worth 495 million euros,
including the syndicated loan and credit lines from the
municipalities.
The Group uses derivatives to hedge interest rate risks
arising from ﬁnancing activities. The (negative) market
value of the hedging structures is included under other
non-current ﬁnancial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT AND STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Management Agreement with the Flemish Region
stipulates that the group’s fee is to be based on passing on
all reasonable costs plus a recompense for the shareholders
based on their contribution to the company’s equity capital.
This means that charges and revenues broadly mirror
one another.
Since 2014, the Group is no longer remunerated based on
the rebilling of all reasonable costs as speciﬁed in the
Management Agreement, but according to a remuneration
model agreed with the Flemish Region – with deﬁned
performance – where the result of the agreed remuneration
formula is considered reasonable.
This performance budget actually relates to head office
overheads and operating costs of the operating assets.
The change in the items raw materials and consumables,
services and other goods and personnel costs is in line with
the growth of the infrastructure operated and developed
by the Group, both within and outside the scope of the
Management Agreement. There are also a number of
exceptional factors which account for this change: historical
regularisations of costs, recovery of income tax deducted
at source on research and development activities, etc.
Financial charges and income cover interest expenses on
short and long-term ﬁnance and charges and income
relating to active interest rate management. The fall in
both ﬁnancial charges and income, both related to active
interest rate management, compared with 2016, is due to
changes in the market value of structures which have been
optimised. The hedging structures which were optimised
in 2017 had a lower absolute market value than those
which were restructured in 2016, so that both charges and
income were taxed less heavily.

After deducting provisions, depreciation, charges not passed
on to the Flemish Region and revenues, including earnings
from commercial activities, the proﬁt before taxes amounts
to 9.96 million euros.
The portion of corporation tax attributable to activities
under the Management Agreement can be passed on to
the water companies as a reasonable cost.
The bulk of the change in the market value of hedging
structures during 2017 – relating to qualifying cash ﬂow
hedges – is included in the statement of comprehensive
income. Since – under the Management Agreement –
the Group is entitled to payment for costs of ﬁnancing,
changes in the market value of the ﬁnancial instruments
are recognised as a receivable in relation to other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements
GENERAL INFORMATION
INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
Aquaﬁn is a naamloze vennootschap (public limited company)
incorporated on 25 April 1990. The company’s registered
office is located at 2630 Aartselaar, Belgium. On 29 September
2009, Aquaﬁn issued a bond that was listed on Euronext
Brussels. This bond was fully redeemed on its maturity date
at the end of September 2015.

The consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the 2017 ﬁnancial
year were approved for publication by the Board of Directors
on 15 March 2018.
Aquaﬁn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Flemish
Environmental Holding.

A description of the company's main activities is contained
in the annual report.

MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES, INCLUDING CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
BASIS OF PREPARATION, VALUATION RULES AND CONSOLIDATION
• Basis of presentation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for derivatives, which are
stated at fair value. The consolidated ﬁnancial statements
are presented in (thousands of) euros.

• Statement of compliance
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the Group
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as published by
the IASB and accepted in the European Union.

• Principles of consolidation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the 2017
ﬁnancial year, ending on 31 December 2017, cover the
company and its subsidiaries (referred to below as 'the
Group') and the Group’s interests in associates.
All Group entities apply the same accounting policies.

The joint venture between Aquaﬁn and De Watergroep
in the form of an undisclosed partnership classiﬁes as
a joint operation under IFRS 11. The joint venture is
established within De Watergroep in a separate business
unit called Riopact. Aquaﬁn’s stake in the joint venture
amounts to 50%.
a. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are companies over which the Group
exercises a decisive inﬂuence (‘control’). Control applies
where the Group enjoys or is entitled to variable revenues
due to its stake in the subsidiary. The Group must also
be able to use its power resulting from this stake to
inﬂuence revenues.
A subsidiary’s ﬁnancial statements are included in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements from the date of
acquisition until the date when control is relinquished.
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b. Transactions eliminated on consolidation
All intra-Group balances, proﬁts and losses and
unrealised gains, losses and dividends arising from
transactions within the Group were eliminated
completely when preparing the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements.

KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS
• Judgements, estimates and assumptions
The management considers that provisions for employee
beneﬁts, impairment, etc., are estimated on the basis of
market-based parameters.
The bridging pension plan is treated as a deﬁned beneﬁt
plan since the Group has an actual liability with respect
to the employees concerned. The Group shows a
provision calculated using the “projected unit credit
method” on the balance sheet. This is explained further
in Note 5.11 Pension liabilities.
Aquaﬁn has entered into a management agreement
with the Flemish Region regarding the performance of
its (supra-municipal) tasks. The Management Agreement
sets out the tasks of Aquaﬁn and the remuneration the
company will receive for this.
The elements of the Management Agreement listed below
are critical to the further evaluation of the accounts.
- All reasonable supra-municipal sanitation costs
incurred by Aquaﬁn are paid by the Flemish Region
through the water companies.
- The Management Agreement is a rolling contract.
This means that it is automatically renewed year by
year unless either party terminates the agreement.
The notice period for termination is 20 years.
- Aquaﬁn possesses the right of use and enjoyment of
the infrastructure constructed, purchased or leased
by the Company for the duration of the Management
Agreement. At the end of the Management Agreement,
after the settlement of all remaining payments due,
the ownership of this infrastructure will be transferred
to the Flemish Region free of charge.
- For the duration of the Management Agreement,
the construction and operation risks are borne by
Aquaﬁn.

The interpretation IFRIC 12 - Service Concession
Arrangements applies to public-private agreements if
the following conditions are satisﬁed:
- the party that grants the concession ('grantor') controls
or regulates which services the operator must provide
with the infrastructure, to whom those services are to
be rendered, and at what price;
- the grantor controls the ultimate right through
ownership. In other words, the grantor has control
over any signiﬁcant residual value of the infrastructure
following the termination of the agreement.
The key aspect of the aforementioned interpretation is
the nature of the services. The activities of the operator
must be of ‘public beneﬁt’ (the so-called ‘public service
obligation’). The services relating to the infrastructure
are provided by Aquaﬁn to the public (in the broad sense
of the term) within the pre-determined framework of
the Management Agreement. This determines which
'public' services are to be provided, namely the
development and management of the supra-municipal
infrastructure for treating domestic waste water.
Infrastructure assets within the scope of the agreement
are assets built or acquired for use under the concession
arrangement or existing infrastructure to which the
operator has been granted access.
All of the infrastructure built, purchased or leased by
Aquaﬁn under the management agreement with the
Flemish Region falls within the scope of this interpretation. Consequently, the infrastructure concerned is
not treated as tangible ﬁxed assets in the Company’s
ﬁnancial statements.
Further explanation can be found in Note 5.0 Service
concession arrangements (IFRIC 12).
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BASIS OF ELEMENTS OF THE BALANCE SHEET
• Intangible assets
Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is included in the
result for the period in which it is incurred.

• Lease
a. The Group as lessee
The Group has entered into a number of operational
leases. They therefore do not involve the transfer of
the actual risks and beneﬁts inherent in ownership.
For operating leases, the lease payments are shown as
charges and are spread in a linear manner over the term
of the lease.
b. The Group as lessor
Leases where the Group acts as lessor are classiﬁed as
ﬁnancial leases if the Group transfers almost all of the
risks and beneﬁts of ownership of an asset to the lessee.
The Group will include a receivable on the balance sheet
equal to the net investment in the lease.

• Financial assets
a. Receivables under the concession arrangement
For the purposes of IFRIC 12, the Group applies the
ﬁnancial asset model. This applies when the operator
possesses an unconditional right to receive cash or
another ﬁnancial asset from the grantor.
In exchange for the services rendered under the
concession arrangement, the Group possesses an
unconditional contractual right as operator and is paid
by the assignor or grantor (the Flemish Region) on a
contractual basis (under the Management Agreement).
The Group will treat this ﬁnancial asset as a receivable
under the category of loans and receivables. Upon initial
inclusion, the receivable is shown at fair value – taking
into account the context within which the Group
operates – essentially corresponding to the nominal
value of the receivable.

On the one hand, the receivable bears no interest, but
on the other hand, the Flemish Region also covers the
cost of ﬁnancing. The receivable is also valued at
amortised cost, calculated using the “effective interest
method”. In view of the speciﬁc context within which
the Group carries out its activities and since the Group
is not allowed to charge interest, the calculation of the
effective interest rate has no impact.
b. Trade and other receivables
When ﬁrst recorded, these ﬁnancial assets are valued at
amortised cost in accordance with IAS39 paragraph 46
(a) (fair value plus any transaction costs). The valuation
of ﬁxed income securities follows the same rules.
Amounts deemed uncollectible are written off against
the relevant allowance account at each balance sheet
date. Both additions to and withdrawals from this
account are reported in the income statement.
c. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of changes
in value.
d. Available-for sale ﬁnancial assets
Available-for sale ﬁnancial assets are those nonderivative ﬁnancial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classiﬁed as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss.
They are valued at the fair value on the balance
sheet with changes in value incorporated in other
comprehensive income.
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• Amounts payable
a. Borrowings
When ﬁrst included in the balance sheet, ﬁnancial
liabilities are valued at fair value, plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the ﬁnancial
liability. After the ﬁrst inclusion, these ﬁnancial liabilities
are valued at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
b. Trade and other current payables
Trade and other current payables are valued at amortised
cost.

• Provisions
Provisions are recorded on the balance sheet where:
• the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outﬂow of resources embodying
economic beneﬁts will be required to settle the
obligation;
• a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
In other words, provisions are shown if they are probable
and if there is a present obligation on the balance sheet
date.
Contingent assets are not shown on the balance sheet
but included in the notes instead, if an inﬂow of
economic beneﬁts is probable. Contingent liabilities are
not shown on the balance sheet but included in the
notes instead, unless the probability of a loss is low.
The charge associated with a provision is recorded in the
income statement. The Group recognises guaranteed
payments (from the Flemish Region or the insurance
company) as an asset.

If the impact of discounting of future cash outﬂows
required is material, the provisions are updated annually
based on the generally used discount rate that expresses
the time value of money that applies on the balance
sheet date.

• Provisions for employee beneﬁts
There are two types of pension plans within the Group:
the deﬁned contribution plan and the deﬁned beneﬁt
plan.
Debts or receivables in respect of deﬁned beneﬁt plans
are shown on the balance sheet. With such plans, the
amount on the balance sheet (the net liability)
corresponds to the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt
obligation, before deducting the fair value of any
fund assets.
To be able to estimate future liabilities accurately, a speciﬁc
actuarial calculation, the projected unit credit method,
is used for deﬁned beneﬁt plans.
The Group has opted to deduct actuarial gains and
losses directly from equity via the statement of other
comprehensive income.
Following a change in the Belgian Supplementary
Pensions Act (WAP), as of 1 January 2016, deﬁned
contribution plans are also treated as deﬁned beneﬁt
plans.
Bridging pension plans are also treated as deﬁned
beneﬁt plans. The Group shows a provision calculated in
accordance with the projected unit credit method.
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• Taxation
a. Income taxes
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities for the
current and previous periods are valued at the amount
that is expected to be received from or paid to the tax
authorities in Belgium or elsewhere.
In accordance with Article 43 of the Management
Agreement with the Flemish Region, all reasonable costs
incurred by the Group in the context of this agreement
will be reimbursed by the water companies, including
all levies and taxes owed by the Group due to the
performance of that agreement.
b. Purchase taxes
Revenues, costs and assets are shown after deducting
purchase tax, except:
- when the value-added tax on the purchase of assets
or services cannot be recovered from the tax
authorities, in which case the value-added tax will be
shown as part of the cost of the acquisition of the
asset or as part of the cost item;
- for receivables and debts that are accounted for
including value-added tax.
The net amount of the value-added tax that can be
recovered or that is payable to the tax authorities is
shown as part of the receivables and debts on the
balance sheet.
c. Deferred tax
In view of the speciﬁc provisions of the Management
Agreement, the Group does not have any temporary
differences in assets or liabilities that would justify the
establishment of a deferred tax debt or receivable.

PRINCIPLES FOR ELEMENTS OF THE INCOME
STATEMENT
• Income
Investment costs may be invoiced on the delivery of the
investment projects to the Flemish Region.
Operating costs – excluding internal and external
ﬁnancing costs – are invoiced based on the formula
approved by the Flemish Government on 20 October 2017.
With regard to ﬁnancing costs, all reasonable costs of
the Company are reimbursed via the water companies.
Revenues are shown if it is probable that the economic
beneﬁts associated with the transaction will ﬂow to the
Company and if the amount of the revenues can be
measured in a reliable manner. Turnover is shown after
deducting value-added tax and discounts. Income from
the sale of goods or the provision of services is shown
when delivery and the complete transfer of risks and
beneﬁts have taken place.
Dividends are shown at the time when the right of the
shareholder to receive the dividend is established.
Projects in progress on behalf of third parties
For projects in progress on behalf of third parties that do
not fall under the concession arrangement, revenues
are shown in the income statement based on the stage
of completion of the project activities (percentage of
completion method). That method can only be used if
the result of a project in progress on behalf of third
parties can be estimated reliably.
On the balance sheet date, the Group prepares an
estimate of the proﬁt or loss on the project: the
difference between the expected contract revenues and
contract costs, as well as the stage of completion of the
project activities. On the reporting date, this completion
level is applied to the total expected revenues and costs
in order to determine the amount of costs and revenues
that are to be applied to the income statement for
the period.
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If the Group expects a loss on the project in progress on
behalf of third parties, this is charged against the proﬁts
immediately.
If the proﬁt or loss on a project in progress on behalf of
third parties cannot be estimated in a reliable way,
revenues are only shown to the value of the costs that
will probably be recoverable.

• Financing costs
Financing costs are shown by the Group as an immediate
charge in the period in which they are incurred.
The Group has no assets for which ﬁnancing costs must
be capitalised.

• Hedging
The Group uses derivatives to hedge interest rate risks
arising from ﬁnancing activities. Active interest
management is carried out in accordance with the
objectives and regulations imposed by the management.
It is Group policy not to enter into speculative
transactions or leverage transactions.
Hedge categories
A distinction is made between two hedge categories:
fair value hedges and cash ﬂow hedges.
Fair value hedges are hedges of the risk of changes in the
fair value of recorded assets and liabilities. Both derivatives
that have been designated as fair value hedges and
the hedged assets or liabilities are valued at fair value
on the balance sheet and changes in fair value are
shown in the income statement. If a hedge ceases to be
particularly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued.
The adjustment to the carrying value of the hedged
interest-bearing ﬁnancial instrument is then depreciated
on a straight-line basis in the income statement until
the hedged position expires.

Cash ﬂow hedges are hedges of the potential variability
of future cash ﬂows related to recognised assets or
liabilities, highly probable forecast transactions or
unrecognised ﬁrm commitments. Changes in the fair
value of a hedging instrument that serves as a highly
effective cash ﬂow hedge are shown in the statement of
other comprehensive income, speciﬁcally in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective part is shown in the income
statement immediately. If the hedged cash ﬂow results
in the recording of a non-ﬁnancial asset or a nonﬁnancial liability, the gain or loss accumulated in equity
for the derivative is no longer shown in the statement of
other comprehensive income, but is included in the
initial valuation of the cost or carrying value of the asset
or liability. In all other cases, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity for the derivative is transferred from the
statement of comprehensive income to the income
statement at the moment when the hedged ﬁrm
commitment or forecast transaction results in the
posting of a proﬁt or a loss. If a hedge ceases to be
particularly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued,
but not retroactively. In that case, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity for the hedge instrument is
shown in the statement of other comprehensive income
until the deﬁned or expected transaction occurs. If a
deﬁned or expected transaction will no longer expected
take place, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
transferred from the statement of comprehensive
income to the income statement.
Recording of movements
The distinction between eligible and ineligible ﬁnancial
instruments determines the method used.
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DISTINCTION BETWEEN ELIGIBLE AND INELIGIBLE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FAIR VALUE HEDGE

CASH FLOW HEDGE

Eligible

• Variation in time value =
impact on income statement
• Variation in intrinsic value =
to be offset
• Coupon: calculated pro rata over the year

• Variation in time value =
impact on income statement
• Variation in intrinsic value =
component of other comprehensive income
• Coupon: calculated pro rata over the year

Ineligible

• Variation in total value =
impact on income statement
• Coupon: cash flow in that year

• Variation in total value =
impact on income statement
• Coupon: cash flow in that year

Events after the balance sheet date
Events after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information concerning the Company's
situation on the balance sheet date (adjusting events)
are shown in the ﬁnancial statements. Other events
after the balance sheet date (non-adjusting events) are
only shown in the notes if they are considered to be
important.
Segment information
For management purposes, the Group is organised in
two operational segments. One segment comprises
business activities carried out under the concession
agreement (Management Agreement) with the Flemish
Region and the other comprises the municipal activities
carried out primarily for (Flemish) towns, cities and
municipalities. In the second segment, the Group is
in direct competition with other sewer operators.
The segments are determined based on internal reporting
and as reported to the Management Committee and
the Board of Directors.

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS APPLYING
• New and amended IFRS standards and IFRIC
interpretations effective for ﬁnancial years beginning
on 01 January 2017
The Group has applied certain new and amended
standards and interpretations for the ﬁrst time.
These are effective for ﬁnancial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2017. The Group has not applied other
new and amended standards and interpretations which
have been published but are not yet effective early.
Although these new and amended standards and
interpretations were applied for the ﬁrst time in 2017,
they did not have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
• Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows –
Disclosure Initiative, effective from 1 January 2017
• Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses, effective
from 1 January 2017
• Annual improvements - 2014–2016 cycle, effective
from 1 January 2017
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• New and amended IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations effective for ﬁnancial years beginning
after 01 January 2017
Those new and amended standards and interpretations
which had already been published on the date of
the publication of the Group’s ﬁnancial statements,
but were not yet effective, are set out below. The Group
intends to adopt these new and amended standards
and interpretations as soon as they become effective.
• Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment –
Classiﬁcation and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions (1), effective from 1 January 2018
• Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – Applying
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts, effective from 1 January 2018
• IFRS 9 Financial instruments, effective from 1 January
2018
• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
including amendments to IFRS 15: Effective Date of
IFRS 15 and Clariﬁcations to IFRS 15, effective from
1 January 2018
• IFRS 16 Leases, effective from 1 January 2019
• IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1), effective from 1 January
2021
• Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property –
Transfers of Investment Property (1), effective from
1 January 2018
• IFRS 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration (1), effective from 1 January 2018
• IFRS 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (1),
effective from 1 January 2019
• Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial instruments –
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (1)
, effective from 1 January 2019
• Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures – Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures (1), effective from 1 January 2019
• Annual improvements - 2014-2016 cycle (1), effective
from 1 January 2018
• Annual improvements - 2015-2017 cycle (1), effective
from 1 January 2019

(1) Not yet adopted by the EU as of 5 February 2018

IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
IFRS 9 Financial instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 combines all three aspects of the
project on the treatment of ﬁnancial instruments:
classiﬁcation and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for ﬁnancial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Retrospective application is
mandatory, except for hedge accounting. There is no need
to present comparative information. Hedge accounting is
generally applied prospectively, with a few exceptions.
The Group will introduce the new standard on the required
effective date and will not apply any comparative
information. In 2017, the Group performed a detailed impact
analysis for all three aspects of IFRS 9. This analysis was
based on information available at the time and may change
as a result of further detailed analyses or additional
information becoming available to the Group in 2018 once
the Group applies IFRS 9. Generally speaking, the Group
does not expect any signiﬁcant impact on its ﬁnancial
position or equity, apart from the impact of the application
of the requirements of IFRS 9 for impairment. The Group
expects a higher provision for impairment, which will have
a negative impact on equity. The Group will also alter the
classiﬁcation of certain ﬁnancial instruments.

IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS
IFRS 15 introduces a ﬁve-step model for recognising revenue
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue
from the delivery of goods or services is recognised at the
amount of consideration to which the company expects to
be entitled. IFRS 15 replaces all existing requirements for
recognition of revenue. IFRS 15 is effective for ﬁnancial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Either full retrospective
application or modiﬁed retrospective application is required.
The Group will implement the new standard on the required
effective date, with modiﬁed retrospective application.
In 2016, the Group performed a preliminary impact analysis
for IFRS 15, followed by a more detailed analysis completed
in 2017.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers is expected to have no impact on the Group’s
equity and income statement. Current recognition of
revenue for municipal activities – for both multi-annual
implementation projects and the operational management
of plants – complies with the new standard.

IFRS 16 LEASES
IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases for ﬁnancial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
IFRS 16 contains a universal model for the identiﬁcation of
leases and their recognition in the ﬁnancial statements of
both lessees and lessors. One of the most notable aspects
of IFRS 16 is that the accounting treatment is asymmetrical
for the lessee and the lessor.
For lessors, the current distinction between ﬁnancial and
operating leases remains largely unchanged.

For lessees, IFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model,
i.e. the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
Linear operating lease costs will be replaced by depreciation
and interest costs.
During 2017, the various contracts affected were analysed
by the Group. The new standard must be applied especially
to leasing agreements concerning cars and office buildings.
The following costs were recorded in 2017 for operating
leases:
• Leasing of headquarters buildings: 181 thousand euros;
• Leasing of car ﬂeet: 3,940 thousand euros.
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Notes to the consolidated
balance sheet
NOTE 5.0 SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (IFRIC 12)
IFRIC 12 concerning services under concession arrangements
is adopted in Aquaﬁn’s consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
Within the scope of IFRIC 12, the Group applies the ﬁnancial
asset model.
The primary impact of this model on the Group’s ﬁnancial
position and results concerns the treatment of its property,
plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment falling
within the scope of this interpretation are not recognised
as tangible assets, but as ﬁnancial assets comprising
payments in respect of the operation and establishment of
the concession.

According to Article 43 of the Management Agreement,
Aquaﬁn’s contractual rights are unconditional and therefore
fulﬁl the deﬁnition of the ﬁnancial asset model.

NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES MANAGEMENT
AGREEMENT
Following the adoption of IFRIC 12, non-current receivables
(= amounts receivable after more than one year) comprise
the following categories:
Property, plant and equipment under IFRIC 12 – Receivables
comprises:

IFRIC-12 RECEIVABLES SHOWN ON THE BALANCE SHEET
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

IFRIC 12 RECEIVABLES BY YEAR DUE

2017

2016

Non-current receivable IFRIC 12
Current receivable IFRIC 12

2,500,524
170,441

2,541,048
142,245

TOTAL IFRIC 12 RECEIVABLES

2,670,964

2,683,293

1,774,045
311,583
25,089
13,115
7,085
291,198
26,399
231,818
-9,368

1,711,777
329,207
24,259
14,875
7,345
305,710
23,877
272,583
-6,341

2,670,964

2,683,293

IFRIC 12 RECEIVABLES BY CATEGORY

Water treatment infrastructure - delivered
Flemish Environment Agency plants purchased
Hydronaut studies
Investments in Headquarters & Operations
Headquarters buildings
Assets under construction
Provision for pensions
Fair value of financial instruments
Other (credit notes to be prepared)
TOTAL
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• Waste water treatment infrastructure delivered to the
Flemish Region. For the part of those investment projects
and replacement investments not yet repaid on the
reporting date, which will be received after more than
one year, the Group recognises a non-current receivable
with respect to the water companies, valued at
amortised cost.
• Infrastructure taken over from the Flemish Environment
Agency (VMM). The Group is also entitled to receive
payment from the Flemish Region for this in the amount
of the part still to be repaid and valued at amortised
cost. The part that is to be recovered after more than
one year is shown under non-current receivables.
• Hydronaut studies are studies that are carried out in
order to ensure the correct design of the supra-municipal
investment project. These studies are also carried out
in the context of the management of existing infrastructure. They are charged to the water companies over
a period of 15 years. For the part of those studies not yet
repaid on the reporting date, which will be recovered
after more than one year, a non-current receivable is
recognised.
• Investments in hardware, software, laboratory equipment,
furniture, materials and equipment required for the
functioning of the headquarters and investments in
hardware, software, laboratory equipment, replacement
investments, electromechanics, extraordinary maintenance
under construction and electromechanics, furniture,
etc., are charged to the water companies in proportion
to depreciation. For the part of those investments not
yet repaid on the reporting date, which will be recovered
after more than one year, a non-current receivable is
recognised.
• Investments in the headquarters building (Dijkstraat 8)
are charged to the water companies in proportion to
the repayment of the loan taken out for this purpose.
For the part of those investments not yet repaid on the
reporting date, which will be recovered after more than
one year, a non-current receivable is recognised.
• Assets under construction: in addition to delivered
projects, the Group has a large number of projects in
progress and therefore a signiﬁcant amount of assets
under construction. The Group also has an unconditional
contractual right to receive payment for these assets
from the Flemish Government. A receivable is recognised
for their value.

The provision for pensions relates to deﬁned beneﬁt plans,
deﬁned contribution plans treated as deﬁned beneﬁt plans
and bridging pensions.
• Provisions for deﬁned beneﬁt plans
Aquaﬁn has two types of pension plan: a deﬁned beneﬁt
plan and a deﬁned contribution plan. An actuarial
calculation has been carried out for liabilities relating to
deﬁned beneﬁt plans as per IAS 19, see Note 5.11. As of
1 January 2016, deﬁned contribution plans are treated
as deﬁned beneﬁt plans.
Since the Group has an unconditional contractual
right under the Management Agreement to receive
compensation for provisions for deﬁned contribution
plans from the water companies, these are shown as
receivables.
• Provisions for bridging pension
As per IAS 19, an actuarial calculation has been carried
out for the provisions for bridging pensions.
This calculation is explained in Note 5.10. Since the
Group has an unconditional contractual right under
the Management Agreement to receive compensation
for provisions for deﬁned beneﬁt plans from the water
companies, these are shown as receivables.

Fair value ﬁnancial instruments
Since the Group has an unconditional contractual right
under the Management Agreement to receive compensation
for ﬁnancing costs, changes in the market value of ﬁnancial
instruments are recognised as receivables, in respect of
other comprehensive income. The calculation of changes
in this market value is explained in Note 5.9.
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CURRENT RECEIVABLES UNDER
THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
Current receivables (= accounts receivable within one year)
as per IFRIC 12 comprise the following categories:
Property, plant and equipment recorded as per IFRIC 12
Receivables comprise:
• waste water treatment infrastructure delivered to the
Flemish Region;
• infrastructure taken over from the Flemish Environment
Agency;
• hydronaut studies;
• investments in hardware, software, laboratory equipment,
furniture, materials and equipment required for the
functioning of the headquarters and investments in
hardware, software, laboratory equipment, replacement
investments in electromechanics, extraordinary
maintenance under construction and electromechanics,
furniture, etc., required for operating activities;
• investments in the headquarters building (Dijkstraat 8).

A description of these items is provided under IFRIC 12
Non-current receivables. For the part of those receivables
that are to be recovered within one year, a current receivable
has been recognised. These receivables are actually received
in year n+1.
Unlike 2016, in 2017 part of the receivable relating to
changes in the market value of ﬁnancial instruments is
recognised under the current receivable Management
Agreement. The impact of this amounted to 28.59 million
euros. In 2016, the entire receivable was reported under the
non-current receivable Management Agreement.
The other IFRIC 12 current receivables relate primarily to
credit notes/invoices yet to be prepared for operating costs.
The water companies are invoiced based on estimates
throughout the year before the total invoice is calculated in
detail at year-end. Invoices/credit notes still to be prepared
for corrections with respect to the previously invoiced
amounts, are recognised on the balance sheet.

IFRIC 12 RECEIVABLES BY YEAR DUE
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Receivables due
after more than 1 year
payable within the year

Receivables with
a remaining period
of more than 1 and
less than 5 years

Receivables with
a remaining period
of more than 5 years

Total

170,441
142,245

646,049
603,198

1,854,474
1,937,850

2,670,964
2,683,293

IFRIC 12 RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2017
As at 31 December 2016
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NOTE 5.1 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other ﬁnancial assets amounted to 32.18 million euros as at 31 December 2017. Compared with the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016, this represents a decrease of 4,927 thousand euros.

ASSETS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Notes

2017

2016

5.1

32,177

37,104

2017

2016

78
14
20,705
4,003
626
2,532
4,218

100
13
22,964
5,882
772
2,505
4,868

32,177

37,104

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other financial assets

Within other ﬁnancial assets, we distinguish between several types.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Available-for sale financial investments
Guarantees
Non-current receivable - municipal transport services
Payments still to be invoiced with respect to Aquafin municipal projects
Payments still to be invoiced with respect to Aquaplus projects
Payments still to be invoiced with respect to Geo-Aquaplus projects
Non-current receivable with respect to provisions - services provided by third parties
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
INVESTMENTS
Since 2011, Aquaﬁn had a participating interest in rio-link
representing one third of the total number of shares.
Aquaﬁn also had the right to nominate three (one third) of
the directors. Aquaﬁn’s stake in rio-link was sold to waterlink on 28 June 2017, on the signature of a new service
agreement which perpetuates the present cooperation
with water-link. This results in a reduction in this category.

However, this category still includes the Group’s stake in
the Rio-P water service West Flanders and in the Rio-P
water service East Flanders (joint venture with water
company De Watergroep).
Given the low material signiﬁcance of these participations,
these are presented under ‘available-for-sale ﬁnancial
investments’.
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NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLE FOR MUNICIPAL
TRANSPORT SERVICES
Under the contracts with the municipalities, Aquaﬁn may
assume responsibility for transport services. Under these
contracts, Aquaﬁn provides the necessary investment and
the company offers the municipality or intermunicipal
cooperative society the opportunity to transport waste
water via these sewers for the duration of the contract
(15 years).
For the projects in question, which are carried out and
eventually reimbursed by the municipalities, the Group
recognises a non-current receivable equivalent to the part
which will be recovered from the municipalities concerned
after more than one year.
On the one hand, no new transport service contracts were
launched in 2017. On the other hand, repayments were
made under the existing agreements.

PAYMENTS STILL TO BE INVOICED FOR
AQUAFIN MUNICIPAL PROJECTS
In addition to projects within the scope of the Management
Agreement, Aquaﬁn also carries out municipal projects.
The “Rio-Totaal” service package that Aquaﬁn offers to
the municipalities is modular. It allows the municipalities
to call on Aquaﬁn to assist with those aspects of the
development and management of a sewer system for
which there is a need. This modular offering is primarily of
interest to towns, cities and municipalities with their own
well-established engineering department requiring speciﬁc
support for one or more aspects of sewer management.

In addition to that modular offering, the municipalities can
also opt for a total solution, the “Rio-Totaal” service package
in the form of a public service concession. This type of
collaboration makes it possible for the towns, cities and
municipalities to focus on particular aspects and decide on
timing, budgets, priorities and ways of working. To bring an
integrated water policy a step closer, Aquaﬁn has signed
agreements with water companies for cooperation across
the board. Municipalities can also opt to fulﬁl their
environmental obligations in this way.
Based on the estimated degree of completion of the projects
outside the concession arrangement as at 31 December
2017, 41.43 million euros in revenues were recognised for
these projects in 2017. A signiﬁcant proportion of these
revenues, i.e. 4.00 million euros, relates to payments still to
be invoiced at the end of 2017. This item has decreased by
1,879 thousand euros compared with the end of 2016.

NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLE WITH RESPECT
TO PROVISIONS – SERVICES PROVIDED
BY THIRD PARTIES
The provisions include the gross amount of the obligation.
Recoveries from third parties are included under other
ﬁnancial assets. This item decreased by 0.65 million euros
in 2017.

PROJECTS IN PROGRESS ON BEHALF OF THIRD PARTIES
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Revenues charged for the financial year
Costs charged for the financial year
Profit for the financial year

2017

2016

41,430
40,827
603

36,776
35,700
1,076

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

NOTE 5.2 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade and other receivables amounted to 39.09 million euros at the end of the 2017 ﬁnancial year. Compared with the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2016, this represents an increase of 7.78 million euros.

ASSETS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Notes

2017

2016

5.2

39,087

31,313

2017

2016

2,209
31,734
5,144

2,150
25,974
3,188

39,087

31,313

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables can be broken down into the following categories:

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Current receivables for municipal transport services
Trade debtors
Other receivables
TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CURRENT RECEIVABLE FOR MUNICIPAL
TRANSPORT SERVICES
For the projects in question, which are carried out and
eventually reimbursed by the municipalities, the Group
recognises a non-current receivable equivalent to the part
which will be recovered from the municipalities concerned
within one year.

TRADE DEBTORS
The table below shows the gross and net trade receivables.
Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing and, in general,
have payment terms of 30 to 60 days.

TRADE DEBTORS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Gross carrying amount
Allowance for doubtful debts
Net carrying amount

2017

2016

32,051
-318
31,734

26,411
-436
25,974
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The table below shows the outstanding trade receivables by due date.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Gross carrying
amount

31/12/17
31/12/16

32,051
26,411

Not due

31,450
23,704

Due
<30 days

30-60 days

61-90 days

>90 days

207
813

189
807

76
538

130
549

Write-downs

Net carrying
amount

-318
-436

31,734
25,974

Changes in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Total

Reduction in value as at 31 December 2016
Additions
Withdrawals
Reduction in value as at 31 December 2017

436
-118
318

OTHER RECEIVABLES
The other receivables item mainly relates to VAT to be claimed back.

NOTE 5.3 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other current ﬁnancial assets amounted to 8.88 million euros as at 31 December 2017. Compared with the balance sheet as
at 31 December 2016, this represents a decrease of 8.12 million euros.

ASSETS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Notes

2017

2016

5.3

8,876

16,992

CURRENT ASSETS
Other current financial assets

In 2017, substantial recovery of income tax deducted at source for research and development activities took place
– retroactively. As at 31 December 2016, a receivable was recognised for this under this balance sheet item.
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There was also a decrease in the balance for reﬁnancing costs to be transferred. The balance for reﬁnancing costs to be
transferred relates to the remaining negative market value of a hedging structure which Aquaﬁn had to pay in 2013 following
the counterparty’s decision not to convert a swaption into a swap. The cost of the negative market value is spread over the
term of the swap provided, i.e. over the period of 2013-2020. Consequently, part of the deferred charges are transferred to
ﬁnancial charges on a monthly basis. As at 31 December 2017, the remaining negative market value, not yet included in the
result, amounted to 6.8 million euros.

NOTE 5.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ASSETS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Notes

2017

2016

5.4

9,110

7,259

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

As at the end of 2017, cash and cash equivalents amounted to 9.11 million euros compared with 7.26 million euros at the end of 2016.

NOTE 5.5 ISSUED CAPITAL
At the end of 2017 ﬁnancial year, the issued capital amounted to 248,400,024 euros. This is fully paid-up.
The capital is represented by 1,001,613 shares with no assigned par value. The shares are registered and recorded in a register
of registered shares.

NOTE 5.6 GROUP RESERVES
Group reserves amounted to 31.57 million euros at the end of the 2017 ﬁnancial year. Compared with the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016, this represents an increase of 1,956 thousand euros.

OTHER EQUITY COMPONENTS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Legal reserve
Available reserves
Profit carried forward
TOTAL

2017

2016

13,741
9,100
8,733

13,252
8,600
7,766

31,574

29,618
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Group reserves consist of the legal reserve, the available
reserves and proﬁt carried forward.
The legal reserve is topped-up annually until it reaches a
level equal to 10% of the capital. In accordance with Article
319 of the Companies Code, 5% of the after-tax proﬁt is
added to the reserve annually.
Over the years, the Group has built up available reserves of
9.10 million euros, or a growth of 0.5 million euros compared
with the previous year.

The proﬁt carried forward amounted to 7.76 million
euros as at 31 December 2016 and 8.73 million euros as at
31 December 2017.
In accordance with IAS 10 – Events After the Reporting
Period – dividends allocated after the ﬁnancial year are not
included as a liability, because they only become payable
after the end of the ﬁnancial year. The impact of this
amounted to 7.78 million euros as at 31 December 2016 and
8.76 million euros as at 31 December 2017.
The minority interests’ share in the equity is 237 thousand
euros.

NOTE 5.7. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Notes

2017

2016

9,742

8,162

5.9
5.9

35,874
-35,874

-27,638
27,638

5.11
5.11

-627
627

-4,476
4,476

9,742

8,162

9,744
-2
9,742

8,172
-10
8,162

NET PROFIT
UNREALISED INCOME
Recyclable:
Net increase in the value of cash flow hedges
Charged on via Management Agreement receivables
Non-recyclable:
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans
Charged on via Management Agreement receivables
TOTAL REALISED AND UNREALISED INCOME AFTER TAX
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

Other comprehensive income with respect to cash ﬂow
hedges is to be considered as recyclable (they could still be
recognised in the income statement, e.g. if cash ﬂow
hedging stops), and actuarial gains and losses on deﬁned
beneﬁt plans as non-recyclable.

Other comprehensive income with respect to cash ﬂow
hedges is discussed in more detail in note 5.9 and actuarial
gains and losses on deﬁned beneﬁt plans in note 5.11
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NOTE 5.8 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS - LONG AND SHORT-TERM
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
STATEMENT OF INTEREST-BEARING LOANS – LONG AND SHORT-TERM AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
As at 31 December 2017, outstanding borrowings can be broken down as follows:
• long-term borrowings, more than one year: 1,787.14 million euros;
• long-term borrowings, due within one year: 153.88 million euros;
• short-term borrowings: 158.12 million euros.
Breakdown of borrowings by category:

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Long-term bank borrowings: allocated
Long-term bank borrowings: general purpose
Long-term commercial paper
Other loans
Purchase of Dijkstraat 8
Long-term bank borrowings: municipal activities
Long-term bank borrowings: Geo-Aquaplus

Interest rate %
(average)

Term

2017

2016

3.76%

2018-2047

1,688,093

1,646,643

1.78%
3.91%
4.79%
3.48%
2.20%

2020-2024
2022-2025
2029
2024-2031
2026

120,000
100,000
6,609
24,512
1,800

110,000
90,000
6,949
26,502
1,779

1,941,014

1,881,873

TOTAL LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Short-term bank borrowings (commercial paper,
credit lines)
Short-term bank borrowings: municipal activities
(credit lines)
Total short-term borrowings

-0.10%

2018

154,500

201,500

0.35%

2018

3,624
158,124

6,369
207,869

2,099,138

2,089,742

TOTAL LONG AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS: ALLOCATED
Long-term loans are used to ﬁnance investment expenditure
which is reimbursed over time by the Flemish Region and,
since 1 January 2005, by the water companies with the
Flemish Region as co-debtor. This long-term ﬁnancing under
the Management Agreement is based on the allocation
agreement. This speciﬁes that the balance of the long-term
loans must be less than the claims that Aquaﬁn has against
the water companies and the Flemish Region as co-debtor.
These claims consist of the unpaid part of investment
projects that have already been delivered.

Up to 31 December 2017, a nominal amount of 3,930 million
euros was drawn down, 1,688 million euros of which has
not yet been repaid. In 2017, Aquaﬁn was able to fulﬁl
the long-term ﬁnancing requirement with 75 million euros
worth of loans from the European Investment Bank, 85 million
euros from institutional investors and 25 million euros in
the form of a green loan from a commercial bank.
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In general, the loans are structured as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

drawdown in euros
ﬁxed interest rate for the entire term of the loan or variable interest rate, hedged with an interest rate cap
term between 10 and 30 years
equal half-yearly or annual capital repayments
half-yearly or annual interest payments

OUTSTANDING DEBT ALLOCATED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

EIB
Commercial banks / institutional investors
- green bond
- other

679,250
1,008,843
86,000
922,843

TOTAL

LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS:
GENERAL PURPOSE
Besides allocated loans, Aquaﬁn also has several unallocated
loans. Due to the 5 to 7 year rolling investment programme
and the additional investment programmes under the Local
Pact, Aquaﬁn needs stable working capital. For this reason,
Aquaﬁn has 220 million euros in ﬁnance with a term
of ﬁve to ten years outstanding, designed to ﬁnance work
in progress.
Finally, in 2009, Aquaﬁn decided to sell one or the office
buildings in Aartselaar. The long-term loan taken out to
ﬁnance this investment has not yet been fully repaid.

1,688,093

• Other loans
In 2017, 10 million euros worth of ﬁnance with a term
of 5 years was taken out to ﬁx the variable costs of
ﬁnancing some of the work in progress.
The other loans consist of bullet loans from commercial
banks maturing between 2022 and 2025.
• Bank loan for purchase of office building at

Dijkstraat 8, Aartselaar
A long-term loan of 8,700 thousand euros with a 20-year
term and an interest rate ﬁxed at 4.79% for the entire
term, was taken out for the purchase and renovation of
the office building at Dijkstraat 8.

• Long-term commercial paper
In June 2017, a further 10 million euros of long-term
commercial paper was issued to partially ﬁx the interest
cost for the funding of work in progress for the next
ﬁve years.

BANK BORROWINGS WITH RESPECT TO
MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES
Under the contracts with the municipalities, Aquaﬁn
assumes responsibility for transport services, for which a
payment system can be designed at the request of the
municipalities.
No new transport service contracts came into effect in 2017.
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LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS –
GEO-AQUAPLUS
As part of its activities, Geo-Aquaplus bvba drew down
extra ﬁnance under the existing 2 million euros investment
loan during 2017. The loan is now fully drawn down and two
tranches have already been repaid.

SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

In accordance with the Basel III regulations, the shortterm lines have been renegotiated and two of the three
back-up lines have been converted to general purpose
lines. Their back-up nature is still maintained.
As at 31 December 2017, 154.5 million euros in short-term
commercial paper was issued.
• Credit lines

The short-term ﬁnancing was used primarily to fund the
work in progress before delivery and overcome cashﬂow
problems.

As at 31 December 2017, no drawdowns were made for
the supra-municipal activities, either under the available
bilateral lines of credit (395 million euros), or under the
revolving credit facility (100 million euros).

• Commercial paper
Features:
- Issue programme for 500 million euros in treasury bills.
- BNP Paribas Fortis is the arranger and domiciliary
agent.
- BNP Paribas Fortis, Belﬁus, KBC and ING are the dealers.
- Minimum term 7 days and maximum term one year.
- The ﬁrst issue by Aquaﬁn took place on 22 June 2000.
The commercial paper programme is covered by back-up
lines of 300 million euros.

SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS WITH
RESPECT TO MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES
Under the contracts with the municipalities, Aquaﬁn
assumes responsibility for certain sanitation tasks for which
a payment system can be designed at the request of the
municipalities. Aquaﬁn uses short-term ﬁnance for works in
progress. As of 31 December 2017, 3.62 million euros had been
drawn down under existing credit lines.

BREAKDOWN OF LONG-TERM BORROWINGS BY TIME TO MATURITY
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Debts payable
after one year,
maturing within
one year

Debts maturing
in between 1
and 5 years

Debts maturing
in more than
5 years

153,878
145,222

616,770
636,409

1,170,366
1,100,242

Total

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Credit institutions 31 December 2017
Credit institutions 31 December 2016

1,941,014
1,881,873
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NOTE 5.9 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
HEDGE ACCOUNTING - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Financial instruments to hedge the interest risk at market value
Other liabilities
TOTAL OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

INTEREST RATE POLICY
Due to provisions contained in the Management Agreement,
we can state that changing interest rates have no impact
on Aquaﬁn’s results. This is because all ﬁnancial costs,
including interest payments, are considered as reasonable
expenses, which are reimbursed in full under the
Management Agreement. Nonetheless, an opportunity cost
arises when interest rates fall and a loan was taken out at
a ﬁxed rate. Conversely, a rise in interest rates constitutes a
risk for a loan taken out with a variable rate. Rising interest
rates also have a negative effect on interest expenses for
loans yet to be drawn down. Aquaﬁn uses ﬁnancial hedging
instruments to actively manage interest risk and optimise
ﬁnancing costs.
In May 2006, Aquaﬁn’s Board of Directors approved the
implementation of a dynamic management procedure for
interest risks. An interest rate policy was drawn up and
approved. During 2016, the interest rate policy was
expanded upon and rewritten in order to clarify certain
provisions. The new interest rate policy was approved at
the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 24 November
2016.
As at 30 December 2017, Aquaﬁn has an outstanding longterm debt of 1.46 billion euros. The framework for the
management of interest rate risk stipulates that, after
hedges, a maximum of 10% of the long-term debt may have
an unlimited ﬂoating rate. Up to 35% of the long-term debt
may be ﬂoating, but with interest costs being limited (via
caps). This means that a minimum of 65% of the long-term
debt must have a ﬁxed rate.

2017

2016

238,286
235

278,288
213

238,521

278,501

As of 31 December 2017, Aquaﬁn used 158.1 million euros
worth of short-term ﬁnance with a term of up to one year.
The interest rate risk for this ﬁnance is not hedged. Finally,
Aquaﬁn has 474 million euros in medium-term ﬁnance
with a term of up to 10 years, a maximum of 50% of which
must be hedged according to the interest rate policy.
Besides managing existing debt, Aquaﬁn can also hedge
part of the budgeted future debt with a ﬁve-year drawdown
horizon. Aquaﬁn can estimate future ﬁnancing needs based
on investment programmes commissioned by the Flemish
Region. Aquaﬁn estimates that approximately 1 billion
euros worth of new long-term loans will be taken out
during the next ﬁve years. The interest rate policy provides
for the possibility of hedging a maximum of 50% of this
estimated future long-term debt. An underlying loan must
be budgeted for for each hedging structure. Every hedging
transaction has to be fully documented at the time of its
arrangement. This involves identifying the underlying
position, the objectives of the interest rate hedging, the
nature of the hedged position and of the ﬁnancial
instruments.
Before the implementation of the interest rate policy,
Aquaﬁn’s long-term debt consisted solely of long-term
ﬁxed-rate loans, for which a change in interest rates has no
direct impact on the interest cost. Afterwards, several longterm loans were taken out at a variable rate, some of which
were hedged. As of 31 December 2017, there is only one loan
with a variable rate which is not hedged. This results in 20.4
million euros worth of outstanding ﬁnance at ﬂoating
interest rates.
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OUTSTANDING CAPITAL BALANCE FLOATING/FIXED
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
2017

2016

1,542,548
376,250
20,417

1,478,844
380,000
21,250

1,939,214

1,880,094

BREAKDOWN OF FIXED / FLOATING RATES EXPRESSED IN TERMS OF NOMINAL VALUE

Fixed rate
Floating rate (hedged with caps and floors)
Floating rate
TOTAL

In addition, there are a number of option deals (caps, ﬂoors)
where a change in the interest rate only has an impact on
interest cost within a given tunnel/collar. As of 31 December
2017, an outstanding amount of 376.2 million euros was
hedged in this way. The table above shows the distribution
of the outstanding capital balance for long and mediumterm loans based on the type of rate, hedged or otherwise.
By active management of the interest risk, Aquaﬁn manages
to achieve interest savings. As of 31 December 2017, an interest
saving of 4.6 million euros was made. Together with the
interest savings from previous years, this could be used for
optimisations of hedging structures. In 2017, 3.6 million
euros of the interest saving was used for restructuring,
so that the remaining gain stood at 1 million euros as at
31 December 2017. At the end of the year, at least 50% of
the savings are deducted from the invoice to the water
companies. As at 31 December 2017, this credit note
amounted to 506 thousand euros. The remainder goes into
a limited buffer, which can be used for future optimisations.

APPLICATION OF HEDGE ACCOUNTING
• Performance
Under IFRS, the valuation of ﬁnancial instruments to
hedge the interest rate risk is categorised according to
three levels: 1) market prices, 2) market-price derived
valuations (observable input) and 3) valuation models
with no observable input. The Aquaﬁn structures are
classiﬁed as Level 2 according to IFRS.
As of 31 December 2017, Aquaﬁn had a dynamic interest
rate management system consisting of 47 structures, of
which one structure is no longer eligible for hedge
accounting. This structure is classiﬁed as an ineligible
fair value hedge. Since this structure is no longer eligible
for hedge accounting, no fair value adjustment is
made to the nominal value of the underlying loan.
The remaining structures are all eligible for cash ﬂow
hedging.
The table on the next page shows the classiﬁcation of
the structures by hedge category, eligibility for hedge
accounting, outstanding capital balance of the underlying loans (budgeted or otherwise) and market value
of the hedging structures.
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CLASSIFICATION AND MARKET VALUE BY HEDGE CATEGORY
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Eligible

Number of
structures

Underlying
(budgeted)
funding 2017

Market value
structures 2017

Market value
structures 2016

1
46

10,000
1,176,250

-128
-238,158

-180
-278,108

47

1,186,250

-238,286

-278,288

HEDGE CATEGORY

Fair value hedge
Fair value hedge
Cash flow hedge
Cash flow hedge
TOTAL STRUCTURES

No
Yes
No
Yes

Compared with 31 December 2016, the market value of the
hedging portfolio increased by 40 million euros. This is due
to a rise in interest rates. Nevertheless, we still recorded a
negative market value for the majority of the portfolio.
This is because payer swaps entered into in the past have a
higher ﬁxed rate than the current market interest rate, and
therefore a negative market value. A further rise in interest
rates will lead to a further increase in the market value.
Rising interest rates also have a positive effect on the
market value of caps bought and ﬂoors sold. The reverse
will apply in the case of falling interest rates.
The tables below show the impact of this variation in market
value on the income statement on the one hand, and the
statement of comprehensive income on the other hand.

The part of the change in the market value that has an impact
on the income statement for the period from 31 December
2016 – 31 December 2017 amounts to 4.1 million euros.
The impact of all structures mainly relates to the change in
time value of cash ﬂow hedges. Solely for the structure not
eligible for hedge accounting, the full change in market
value, including the coupon, is recorded. Coupons for cash
ﬂow hedges also have a negative effect on the change in
the market value of the structure. This is because, as a
result of the reduction in short-term interest rates compared
with 31 December 2016, the incoming coupons for the
ﬂoating legs of the swaps decreased and we paid a higher
coupon for sold ﬂoors which were in the money. Since as
of 31 December 2017 Aquaﬁn no longer has any eligible fair
value hedges in the portfolio, the third component with an
impact on income no longer applies.

IMPACT OF VARIATION IN MARKET VALUE ON THE INCOME STATEMENT
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

CHANGE IN MARKET VALUE - IMPACT ON INCOME STATEMENT

Impact of all structures
Impact - coupon
Adjustment to hedge structure of eligible fair value hedges
Impact on the income statement

2017

2016

4,128

-11,456

4,845
-716
0
4,128

75
-1,585
-9,946
-11,456
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IMPACT OF VARIATION IN MARKET VALUE ON THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Impact of eligible cash flow hedges
Impact on statement of comprehensive income

The part of the change in the market value that has an
impact on equity via comprehensive income for the period
from 31 December 2016 – 31 December 2017 amounts to
35.9 million euros. This relates to the change in the intrinsic
value of the eligible cash ﬂow hedges, which is positive as a
result of the higher long-term interest rates as at 31 December
2017 compared with 31 December 2016.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
In order to test the sensitivity of our hedging portfolio to
possible changes in interest rates, a sensitivity analysis is
performed. This illustrates the impact of a range of interest
rate scenarios on the income statement. The analysis is
based on forward rates, which change as a result of
hypothetical shifts in interest rates on the current interest
rate curve. All other variables in the market remain constant.
The table below shows the impact of various shifts in
interest rates as at 31 December 2017 on the result as at
31 December 2017.
Since there is only one structure, a fair value hedge, which
is not eligible for hedge accounting, the impact on the
result mainly consists of the pro rata coupon values and
the changes in the time value of the 46 cash ﬂow hedges
in the hedging portfolio.

2017

2016

35,874

-27,638

35,874
35,874

-27,638
-27,638

As the coupon values are all ﬁxed in advance, they are kept
constant at the level applying on 31 December 2017.
Consequently, only the change in the time value of caps
and ﬂoors has an impact on the result following these
hypothetical shifts in interest rates. As of 31 December 2017,
the pro rata coupons totalled -26.13 million euros and the
change in time value amounted to 4.84 million euros (delta
time value). The ﬁgures show that the total change in time
value in all interest rate scenarios partially offsets the
negative impact of the coupons on the result. This positive
effect is greatest in the +1% scenario.
Overall, it can be observed that downward shifts in interest
rates only lead to minor changes in the impact on the
result. The strike levels of the caps and ﬂoors for most
derivatives (not recently acquired) are very different from
the interest rate level tested. The time value from the
various structures is therefore very low. A further negative
shift in interest rates will only lead to a slight further
change in time value.
In rising interest rate scenarios, the interest rate comes
closer to the strike levels and the net change in time value
is signiﬁcantly greater.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

IMPACT OF CHANGE IN INTEREST RATES ON THE 2017 INCOME STATEMENT
-1.00%

-0.50%

-0.25%

2017

+0.25%

+0.50%

+1.00%

-20,798

-21,564

-21,522

-21,286

-20,464

-20,434

-19,317
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

IMPACT OF CHANGE IN INTEREST RATES ON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2017
-1.00%

-0.50%

-0.25%

2017

+0.25%

+0.50%

+1.00%

-67,566

-14,874

10,877

35,874

70,438

89,808

139,870

Since positive delta time values predominate, the negative
impact of the pro rata coupon values on the result is
diminished to -19.3 million euros in the +1% scenario. In the
latter scenario, the change in time value has an impact of
6.81 million euros.
The changes in the intrinsic value of the eligible cash ﬂow
hedges and fair value hedges are recognised in the
comprehensive income statement under equity. We show
them in the table above.
The intrinsic value of our derivatives portfolio was negative
as at 31 December 2017, but still up by 35.87 million euros
compared with 31 December 2016. In falling interest rate
scenarios, the intrinsic value of the portfolio will fall. In the
-0.25% scenario, the impact of the change is still positive
compared with 31 December 2016, but falls to 10.88 million
euros. In the case of greater falls in interest rates, the
impact on equity will be negative. In the case of rising
interest rates, the intrinsic value of the portfolio rises,
consequently increasing the positive impact on equity.

REFINANCING RISK
Aquaﬁn ﬁnances most of its long-term ﬁnancing
requirements under the Allocation Agreement. This speciﬁes
that the outstanding capital balance must be less than the
remaining claims against the Flemish Region.
Due to the changes in the ﬁnancial markets, BASEL III and
the impact of Solvency II, it is becoming increasingly difficult
to ﬁnd ﬁnance for a 30-year period and Aquaﬁn has sought
alternative forms of ﬁnancing. Thus, in recent years, various
forms of bonds have been issued and loans with shorter
terms drawn down. These alternative forms of ﬁnancing
and shorter maturities may give rise to a future reﬁnancing
risk. The table below shows the nominal value of
outstanding and budgeted debt placed in a hedge
relationship, based on the year in which they mature.
Aquaﬁn fulﬁls the ﬁnancial covenants regarding equity and
interest cover imposed by several lenders.

BREAKDOWN OF HEDGED LOANS BY SETTLEMENT YEAR
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Maturing in
2018

Maturing in
2019/2022

Maturing in
≥ 2023

Total

245,417

910,000

1,186,250

BREAKDOWN BY SETTLEMENT YEAR (AT NOMINAL VALUE)

Outstanding debt

30,833
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Despite the new ﬁnancial regulations and thanks to Aquaﬁn’s good rating, Aquaﬁn remains a reliable company in which to
invest. We can therefore still count on spontaneous offerings of investment from investors and ﬁnancial institutions.
Besides the long and medium-term ﬁnance, Aquaﬁn also has a 500 million euros commercial paper programme, 200 million
euros in credit lines as a back-up for the commercial paper programme, back-up lines of credit worth 100 million euros,
a syndicated loan for 100 million euros which also serves solely as a back-up and 85 million euros in short-term credit lines
with four different credit institutions. If long-term ﬁnance cannot be found straight away for a shorter period, Aquaﬁn can
always call on a wide range of short-term credit lines.

NOTE 5.10 OTHER PROVISIONS
The provisions included as at 31 December 2017 relate to legal disputes, insurance claims, disputes relating to the performance
of the Management Agreement and processing of the sludge buffered in the plants, among other matters.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Gross liabilities
Services provided by third parties
Net provisions

2017

2016

9,903
-4,218
5,685

7,893
-4,868
3,025

CHANGES IN PROVISIONS BY TYPE
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Legal
disputes

Insurance
claims

Deducted
costs

Sludge
buffers

Total

PROVISIONS AS AT 31/12/2016

4,692

788

2,188

225

7,893

Additions
Withdrawals of unused amounts

110
-782

4,667
-2,134

243
-94

5,020
-3,010

PROVISIONS AS AT 31/12/2017

4,802

6

4,721

374

9,903

374
4,802

6

4,721

374
9,529

Current 31/12/2017
Non-current 31/12/2017
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CHANGES IN PROVISIONS BY TYPE
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Legal
disputes

Insurance
claims

Deducted
costs

Sludge
buffers

Total

PROVISIONS AS AT 31/12/2015

5,316

2,089

1,393

129

8,927

Additions
Withdrawals of unused amounts

-1,301

1,759
-964

96

-624

1,855
-2,889

PROVISIONS AS AT 31/12/2016

4,692

788

2,188

225

7,893

225
4,692

788

2,188

225
7,668

Current 31/12/2016
Non-current 31/12/2016

The provision for the processing of sludge buffered in
plants can be charged immediately to the water companies
as it comes under “reasonable costs”, as speciﬁed in the
Management Agreement with the Flemish Region.
The other items relating to provisions can only be charged
to the water companies in the long term, if at all, subject to
thorough justiﬁcation of the reasonableness of the costs
concerned.

PROVISION FOR LEGAL DISPUTES
Provision is made for legal disputes based on a reasonable
estimate of the claim where it is probable that the Group
may lose the case. As at 31 December 2017, the provision
for legal disputes amounted to 4.80 million euros for
112 disputes.

PROVISION FOR DEDUCTED COSTS
All of the remaining risks relating to the Management
Agreement fall under this provision, especially with respect
to possible breaches of the Management Agreement
and the risk of unreasonableness and therefore nonreimbursement of certain investment or operating costs.
The provision for deducted costs relates ﬁrstly to projects
that have not yet been delivered due to administrative
reasons and delayed/postponed execution of municipal
projects (4,023 thousand euros) and secondly to the
deduction of project costs recorded after delivery, known as
subsequent costs (683 thousand euros). As a precaution,
a small provision was made in 2018 with respect to the
audit of the statement of subsequent costs 2014-2017.

PROVISION FOR SLUDGE BUFFERS
PROVISION FOR INSURANCE CLAIMS
This heading covers claims where we suspect that the loss
cannot be recovered from the insurer(s), in full or in part.
In 2017, the insurance claim for the loss at Bruges WWTP
(issue with concrete) was ﬁnally closed. All costs incurred
for the repair and protection measures were reimbursed by
the insurer.
As at 31 December 2017, the provision amounted to 6 thousand
euros for one insurance claim.

Every year, provision is made for the processing costs for
the sludge in the buffers. The processing cost for the
buffered sludge falls under 'reasonable costs' as provided
for in the Management Agreement with the Flemish Region.
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NOTE 5.11 PENSION LIABILITIES
For pension liabilities, a distinction is made between:
1. Provisions for pension plans
2. Provisions for bridging pensions

PENSION LIABILITIES
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Provision for pension plans
- Defined benefit plans
- Defined contribution plans
Provision for bridging pensions
TOTAL

1. PROVISIONS FOR PENSION PLANS
There are two types of pension plans within the Group:
deﬁned beneﬁt plans (DB plans for short) and deﬁned
contribution plans (DC plans for short).
Employees joining before 01/01/2007 have a deﬁned beneﬁt
plan (DB plan). Employees joining after 01/01/2007 have a
deﬁned contribution plan (DC plan).
These survival and death plans are managed by AG
Insurance nv. They are underwritten in the form of a group
insurance scheme managed for each individual member.
Every employee with a temporary or permanent contract
is a member.
• In the case of ‘death’ cover, immediately on joining
the company.
• In the case of ‘survival’ cover, immediately on joining
the company, but at the earliest and for certain at
the age of 25 years.
The upper age limit of the plan is 65 years (the ﬁrst day of
the month following the 65th birthday).

2017

2016

23,690
23,684
6
3,367

21,798
21,746
52
2,915

27,057

24,713

Employees joining the company before 01/01/2007
(closed population)
‘SURVIVAL’ COVER
- If a member is alive on the stipulated maturity date,
they receive a lump sum equal to the capitalisation of
the Survival contributions plus any bonus allocated in
case of Survival.
- The lump sum in case of Survival is insured via an
insurance transaction of the type of Endowment
without repayment of reserves.
- Formula speciﬁed in the rules:
• (200% S1 + 600% S2) x length of service x 1.2
- S = 13.9 x gross monthly salary on 1 January
- S1 = part of salary restricted to the Statutory
Pension Ceiling for Wage-earners
- S2 = part of salary above the Statutory Pension
Ceiling for Wage-earners
- Length of service is calculated in years and
complete months and is restricted to 40 years.
• This formula results in a deﬁned sum. A contribution
has to be paid in return for this.
• From the age of 60, the calculations are based on
the average salary over the last ﬁve years.
- The employer has to pay all of the contributions.
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‘DEATH’ COVER
- If the member dies before the speciﬁed maturity date,
the plan provides for the payment of a lump sum
death beneﬁt (to the heirs in the event of the
member’s death).
- This sum is equal to:
• 200% S + (50% S x the number of children)

Employees joining the company after 01/01/2007
‘SURVIVAL’ COVER
- If a member is alive on the stipulated maturity date,
they receive a lump sum equal to the capitalisation of
the Survival contributions plus any bonus allocated in
case of Survival.
- The lump sum in case of Survival is insured via an
insurance transaction of the type of Endowment with
repayment of reserves.
- Formula speciﬁed in the rules:
• 3.5% S1 + 15% S2
• This formula results in a deﬁned contribution.
This contribution amount covers a deﬁned sum.
- The employer has to pay all of the contributions.

‘DEATH’ COVER
- If the member dies before the speciﬁed maturity date,
the plan provides for the payment of a lump sum
death beneﬁt (to the heirs in the event of the
member’s death).
- This sum is equal to the higher of the following two
amounts:
• 200% S + (50% S x the number of children)
• The accrued and capitalised reserves
Debts or receivables in respect of deﬁned beneﬁt plans are
shown on the balance sheet. With such plans, the amount
on the balance sheet (the net liability) corresponds to the
present value of the gross liability, minus the fair value of
plan assets and adjusted for unrecognised past service
cost. To be able to estimate future liabilities accurately,
a speciﬁc actuarial calculation, the projected unit credit
method, is used.
As of 1 January 2016, deﬁned contribution plans are treated
as deﬁned beneﬁt plans.
The provision arising from this calculation amounted
to 21.79 million euros as at 31 December 2016 and 23.69
million euros as at 31 December 2017.

PROVISIONS FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Current cost of liability
Fair value of the plan assets
DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY

2017

2016

68,418
44,728

62,955
41,157

23,690

21,798
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The actuarial calculation is based on the following assumptions:

ASSUMPTIONS
2017

2016

Wage increase

3.5% per annum to age 55
2% per annum thereafter
% quoted includes inflation

3.5% per annum to age 55
2% per annum thereafter
% quoted includes inflation

Inflation

2% per annum
This % is used to calculate
the social security limit

2% per annum
This % is used to calculate
the social security limit

Discount rate

1.70% per annum (DB plan)
2.00% per annum (DC plan)

1.70% per annum (DB plan)
1.90% per annum (DC plan)

Retirement age

65 for everyone

65 for everyone

Life expectancy

MR (Belgian mortality table for men)
with correction -3 years
FR (Belgian mortality table for women)
with correction -3 years

MR (Belgian mortality table for men)
with correction -3 years
FR (Belgian mortality table for women)
with correction -3 years

The changes in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt plans are as follows:

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY 31 DECEMBER 2015 (DB PLAN + DC PLAN)

Current service cost
Interest cost
Participants' contributions
Contributions paid
Expenses paid
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/losses
CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY 31 DECEMBER 2016 (DB PLAN + DC PLAN)

Current service cost
Interest cost
Participants' contributions
Contributions paid
Expenses paid
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/losses
CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY 31 DECEMBER 2017 (DB PLAN + DC PLAN)

49,553

3,027
1,304
363

-851
9,559
62,955

4,033
1,075

-778
1,133
68,418
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The actuarial gains and losses of the gross liability for 2017 can be broken down further into:
• experience adjustments: 1,262 thousand euros;
• changes in actuarial assumptions: -129 thousand euros.
The changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

MARKET VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 (DB PLAN + DC PLAN)

Return on plan assets
Expected Group contributions
Participants' contributions
Contributions paid
Expenses paid
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/losses
MARKET VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (DB PLAN + DC PLAN)

Return on plan assets
Expected Group contributions
Participants' contributions
Contributions paid
Expenses paid
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/losses
MARKET VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (DB PLAN + DC PLAN)

32,612

891
2,319
363

-849
5,821
41,157

652
2,889
0

-778
808
44,728
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The cost shown on the income statement with respect to deﬁned beneﬁt plans comprises the following elements:

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

CHANGE IN THE CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY (1)

Current service cost
Interest cost
Participants' contributions
Benefits paid
CHANGE IN THE VALUE OF THE PLAN ASSETS (2)

Expected return on plan assets
Expected Group contribution
Expected participant contributions
Benefits paid
PENSION COSTS (1-2)

2017

2016

4,330

3,843

4,033
1,075
0
-778

3,027
1,304
363
-851

2,763

3,483

652
2,889
0
-778

1,650
2,319
363
-849

1,567

360

The fair value of the plan assets as at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December 2017 consists 100% of qualifying insurance
policies.
The distribution of the underlying assets as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:
•
•
•
•

Equities: 4.52%
Fixed income: 75.66%
Property: 16.70%
Other: 3.12%
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Sensitivity analysis

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

DISCOUNT RATE

Current cost of gross liability
Pension costs
Assets

1.70%
Basis

1.20%
Scenario -0.50%

2.20%
Scenario +0.50%

1.70%
Previous year

59,866,057
2,828,416
38,954,700

64,627,604
3,071,320
41,506,069

55,541,595
2,608,961
36,619,921

59,866,057

2.00%
Basis

1.50%
Scenario -0.50%

2.50%
Scenario +0.50%

59,866,057
2,828,416

56,454,375
2,643,118

63,550,842
3,029,326

-3
Basis

-2
Scenario +1

-4
Scenario -1

59,866,057
2,828,416
38,954,700

59,476,132
2,809,180
38,730,690

60,221,832
2,845,970
39,159,049

2.00%
Basis

1.50%
Scenario -0.50%

2.50%
Scenario +0.50%

1.90%
Previous year

5,778,009
885,449
5,773,117

6,456,798
885,473
6,427,614

5,182,334
885,449
5,198,372

5,907,984

INFLATION RATE

Current cost of gross liability
Pension costs
MORTALITY TABLE MR/FR: AGE CORRECTION

Current cost of gross liability
Pension costs
Assets

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

DISCOUNT RATE

Current cost of gross liability
Pension costs
Assets

5,897,265

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

2. PROVISIONS FOR BRIDGING PENSIONS
Bridging pension schemes are also treated as deﬁned beneﬁt plans.
The Group shows a provision calculated in accordance with the projected unit credit method. The bridging pension liability
amounted to 2.91 million euros as at 31 December 2016 and 3.37 million euros as at 31 December 2017.

BRIDGING PENSION LIABILITY
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Gross liability
NET LIABILITY

2017

2016

3,367

2,915

3,367

2,915

The calculation is based on the following assumptions:

ASSUMPTIES
2017

2016

Wage increase

3.5% per annum to age 55
2% per annum thereafter
% quoted includes inflation

3.5% per annum to age 55
2% per annum thereafter
% quoted includes inflation

Inflation

2% per annum
This % is used to calculate
the social security limit

2% per annum
This % is used to calculate
the social security limit

Discount rate

0.90% per annum

1.05% per annum

Probability of taking
bridging pension

Age < 50 years: 0%
Age ≥ 50 years: 20%

Age < 50 years: 0%
Age ≥ 50 years: 20%

Life expectancy

MR (Belgian mortality table for men)
with correction -3 years
FR (Belgian mortality table for women)
with correction -3 years

MR (Belgian mortality table for men)
with correction -3 years
FR (Belgian mortality table for women)
with correction -3 years

The bridging pension liability amounted to 2.91 million euros as at 31 December 2016 and 3.37 million euros as at 31 December
2017. There are no assets against this.
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Changes in the current cost of the gross liability for bridging pensions:

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY 31 DECEMBER 2015

2,001

Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/losses

140
53
-17
738

CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY 31 DECEMBER 2016

2,915

Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/losses

204
30
-6
224

CURRENT COST OF THE GROSS LIABILITY 31 DECEMBER 2017

3,367

Sensitivity analysis

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

DISCOUNT RATE

Current cost of gross liability
Pension costs

0.90%
Basis

0.40%
Scenario -0.50%

1.40%
Scenario +0.50%

1.05%
Previous year

3,367,497
220,663

3,504,660
229,785

3,237,331
212,007

3,27,732

NOTE 5.12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables amounted to 92.46 million euros as at 31 December 2017. Compared with the balance sheet as at
31 December 2016, this represents an increase of 9.35 million euros.
The increase in this item is in line with increased business activity and is also a function of the timing of invoicing by suppliers
and the timing of payment to these suppliers.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Trade and other payables

Notes

2017

2016

5.12

92,458

83,113

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

A distinction is made within trade and other payables between: suppliers, debts with respect to salaries and social insurance
contributions, advances received and guarantees received. The estimates for invoices yet to be received are also included
under suppliers.
As at 31 December 2017, the number of days of supplier credit (calculated as: outstanding trade receivables payable within
one year/purchases including VAT * 365) is 63 days. In 2016, this was 59 days. Purchases consist of: investments in projects
during the ﬁnancial year, changes to ﬁxed assets under construction, goods purchased for resale, raw materials and
consumables and services and other goods.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Suppliers
Amounts payable relating to salaries and social insurance contributions
Advances received
Guarantees received
TOTAL

2017

2016

83,498
8,926
25
10

74,720
8,347
46
0

92,458

83,113

NOTE 5.13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other current ﬁnancial liabilities amounted to 7.54 million euros as at 31 December 2017. Compared with the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2016, this represents a decrease of 0.29 million euros.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Other current financial liabilities

Notes

2017

2016

5.13

7,537

7,829

Notes

2017

2016

5.14

5,389

5,911

This concerns accrued charges and deferred income, primarily interest owed.

NOTE 5.14 TAX PAYABLE
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Tax payable

The outstanding liability as of 31 December 2017 relates to unpaid corporation tax, regional, provincial and municipal taxes
and levies.
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Notes to the consolidated
income statement
NOTE 6.0 SERVICES RENDERED
In 2016, the Group realised income of 309.58 million euros from services rendered. In 2017, this income amounted to
310.62 million euros.

(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Activities under the Management Agreement
Activities outside the Management Agreement
TOTAL

Under the Management Agreement, Aquaﬁn collects waste
water from Flemish households in collectors and transports
it to treatment plants. First of all, Aquaﬁn developed the
necessary infrastructure: collectors for waste water,
pumping stations and waste water treatment plants.
Aquaﬁn ﬁnances the projects awarded and the water
companies repay the investments. For projects delivered
from 1 January 2009, the repayment term for electromechanical works is 15 years and for construction works
30 years. For assets that were acquired from the Flemish
Environment Agency, the repayment term is 20 years.

2017

2016

267,756
42,868

270,385
39,201

310,624

309,586

Aquaﬁn is also responsible for the maintenance and
operation of the supra-municipal sewer system and the
waste water treatment plants. The treated waste water has
to comply with Flemish and EU standards.
Outside the Management Agreement, Aquaﬁn has
developed a further speciﬁc offer for towns, cities and
municipalities. Several towns, cities and municipalities have
outsourced the construction and maintenance of their
sewers completely to Aquaﬁn. Several companies also have
their waste water treated by Aquaﬁn.

NOTE 6.1 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Other operating income

Notes

2017

2016

6.1

4,406

9,111

Other operating income amounted to 4.41 million euros in 2017 compared with 9.11 million euros in 2016.

Notes to the consolidated income statement

This mainly relates to recovery of costs that cannot be treated as part of normal sales. Examples of this include rebilling to
third parties of costs of incidents, income from green electricity certiﬁcates, recovery of costs relating to research projects, etc.
In 2016, there was a substantial increase in this item due to the income tax deducted at source recovered for research and
development activities. This income related to income tax deducted at source for the 2012, 2013 and 2014 ﬁnancial years.
In 2017 the income tax deducted at source was recovered for the 2011 ﬁnancial year.

NOTE 6.2 RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES, SERVICES AND OTHER GOODS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Raw materials and consumables, services and other goods

The cost of raw materials and consumables amounted to
154.47 million euros in 2016 and 148.92 million euros in 2017.
The main cost components are consumption of gas and
electricity, removal and dumping costs for sand and sludge,
maintenance costs, consumption of chemicals, vacuuming,
spraying and cleaning and operating costs charged by the
Brussels Region for treating waste water originating from
the Flemish Region, engineering company costs, external
personnel and vehicle costs, engineering company and
construction costs in the context of activities outside the
concession arrangement.
In 2016 there were several exceptional factors that had a
negative impact on costs in that year:
• impact of the heavy rainfall in the ﬁrst half of 2016 on
operating costs;
• historical regularisation concerning cross-regional waste
water treatment between het Flemish Region (via
Aquaﬁn) and the Walloon Region (via Ipalle);
• extra costs charged by the Brussels Region via the
Brussels Water Authority.

Notes

2017

2016

6.2

-148,924

-154,474

Under this heading, in 2017, 122 thousand euros in research
costs were charged directly against proﬁts. The directly
applicable research conducted by Aquaﬁn relates to cost
control, guaranteeing effluent standards and introducing
the best available technologies. The research strategy is
grouped around three major pillars: integrated water
management, recovery of energy and raw materials and
improving the reliability and performance of the treatment
infrastructure.
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NOTE 6.3 PERSONNEL COSTS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Personnel costs

Notes

2017

2016

6.3

-74,628

-70,444

Personnel costs amounted to 74.63 million euros in 2017 and 70.44 million euros in 2016. Personnel costs include: salaries and
direct social beneﬁts, employer’s social insurance contributions, employer’s premiums for non-statutory insurance, other
personnel costs and bridging pension payments.

BREAKDOWN OF PERSONNEL COSTS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Salaries and direct social benefits
Employer’s social insurance contributions
Employer's premiums for non-statutory insurance
Other personnel costs
Pensions
TOTAL

During the 2017 ﬁnancial year, on average 967.8 FTEs were
employed, of which 782.8 full-time and 249.5 part-time.
A total of 1,546,537 hours were actually worked.
During the 2016 ﬁnancial year, on average 928.8 FTEs were
employed, of which 746.0 full-time and 244.3 part-time.
A total of 1,499,448 hours were actually worked.

2017

2016

52,983
14,734
4,060
2,698
154

50,170
14,268
3,344
2,517
145

74,628

70,444

At the end of the 2017 ﬁnancial year, the Group had 802 fulltime employees and 255 part-time employees, together
amounting to 990.4 FTEs; on 31 December 2016, the Group
had 772 full-time employees and 236 part-time employees,
together amounting to 948.9 FTEs. All staff are classed as
white-collar workers.

Notes to the consolidated income statement

NOTE 6.4 DEPRECIATION, WRITE-DOWNS, PROVISIONS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Depreciation, write-downs, provisions

Notes

2017

2016

6.4

-4,732

-1,518

As the Group does not recognise any property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet, this item only relates to writedowns and provisions. Speciﬁcally, it concerns changes to provisions, deﬁned beneﬁt plan and bridging pensions and changes
in write-downs on receivables.
The increase is mainly due to the increase in provisions, especially provisions for deducted costs.

NOTE 6.5 OTHER EXPENSES
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Other expenses

Notes

2017

2016

6.5

-7,797

-7,967

Other expenses amounted to 7.80 million euros in 2017 and 7.97 million euros in 2016. They mainly relate to business taxes:
non-deductible VAT, property tax, regional taxes and other ﬁscal costs.

NOTE 6.6 FINANCING COSTS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Financing costs

Notes

2017

2016

6.6

-96,900

-107,629

Financing costs mainly relate to the cost of interest-bearing loans, long and short term, and changes in the market value of
hedging structures (see also Notes 5.8 and 5.9).
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(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Interest on loans and other financing costs
Changes to market value of hedge structures to P&L
TOTAL FINANCING COSTS

2017

2016

101,745
-4,845

107,704
-75

96,900

107,629

Financial charges and income cover interest expenses on short and long-term ﬁnance and charges and income relating to
active interest rate management. The fall in both ﬁnancial charges and income, both related to active interest rate
management, compared with 2016, is due to changes in the market value of structures which have been optimised.
The hedging structures which were optimised in 2016 had a higher absolute market value than those which were
restructured in 2017, so that both charges and income were taxed more heavily in 2016.

IN FIGURES
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
2017

2016

27,361
27,867
506

31,109
31,844
735

Notes

2017

2016

6.7

27,916

31,870

Interest rate management costs (financing costs)
Interest rate management income (financing revenue)
Result for interest rate management

NOTE 6.7 FINANCING REVENUES
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Financing revenues

Financing revenues amounted to 27.92 million euros in 2017 and 31.87 million euros in 2016.
This mainly concerns revenues from interest management, resulting from the optimisation of hedging structures. It also
includes interest on investments and default interest received.

Notes to the consolidated income statement

NOTE 6.8 INCOME TAXES
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities for the current and previous periods are valued at the amount that is expected
to be received from or paid to the tax authorities in Belgium or elsewhere.
In view of the speciﬁc provisions of the Management Agreement, the Group does not have any temporary differences in
assets or liabilities that would justify the establishment of a deferred tax debt or receivable.
Article 43.1 of the same Management Agreement stipulates that all levies and taxes owed by Aquaﬁn for the performance of
this agreement are to be reimbursed via the water companies.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Current tax expense
Adjustments to the tax expense for previous years
Income tax as per consolidated income statement

2017

2016

6,363
-172
6,191

4,150
-219
3,931

9,964
10
5,969

8,536
41
3,557

15,943

12,134

5,419
-172
1,159
-215
6,191

4,124
-219
980
-955
3,931

6,191

3,931

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN ACTUAL TAX BURDEN AND THEORETICAL TAX BURDEN:

Profit before taxes from continuing operations
Projects in progress on behalf of third parties: % of completion
Rebilling of taxes under the concession arrangement
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES
At the legal rate applicable in Belgium (34%)
Adjustments to income taxes for previous years
Non-deductible costs
Deduction for risk capital
At the rate actually applying
INCOME TAXES RECORDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Under the concession arrangement with the Flemish Region, 3.56 million euros and 5.97 million euros in corporation taxes
were rebilled to the water companies in 2016 and 2017 respectively.
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NOTE 6.9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Notes

2017

2016

9,964

8,536

9,742

8,162

9,744
-2
9,742

8,172
-10
8,162

6.9

9.73

8.15

6.9

9.73

8.15

6.9

9.73

8.15

6.9

9.73

8.15

Profit before taxes from continuing operations
NET PROFIT
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE (IN EUROS)
Basic earnings per share, to be allocated to holders of ordinary shares
in the parent
Diluted earnings per share, to be allocated to holders of ordinary shares
in the parent
EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (IN EUROS)
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations, to be allocated
to holders of ordinary shares in the parent
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations, to be allocated
to holders of ordinary shares in the parent

All shares in the Group are held by Flemish Environmental Holding.
Since 13 December 2011 the capital consists of 1,001,613 shares.
As at 31 December 2017, all shares are fully paid up.

DIVIDEND PER SHARE
In April 2017 total dividends for the 2016 ﬁnancial year were paid of 7,788,162 euros or:
• 8.46 euros for shares that are fully paid-up;
• 5.06 euros for shares that are fully paid-up as of 30 June 2016.
If the General Meeting approves the proposed appropriation of proﬁts, a gross dividend of 8.75 euros per share will be paid
on 24 April 2018.

Notes to the consolidated cash-flow statement

Notes to the consolidated
cash-ﬂow statement
NOTE 7.1 REVENUE FROM CUSTOMERS
REVENUE FROM CUSTOMERS
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Management Agreement
Of which:
Construction activity
Services
Activities outside the Management Agreement
TOTAL

Aquaﬁn is remunerated by the water companies for both
investment and operating costs.
Payments for construction activities concern reimbursement
for the sewage treatment infrastructure delivered. The
repayment term for that infrastructure takes the expected
life of the infrastructure into account. The increase in
remuneration is due the development of the assets.
Payments for services mainly concern the charging of
operating expenses for headquarters and Operations and
the interest expenses, plus a payment for equity. Due to
the mismatch in timing between the payment of money
from the MINA fund and the Group’s invoicing of the
water companies, the Office of Environment, Nature and
Agriculture granted a deferral of payment to two water
companies in the autumn of 2015. There was therefore
additional revenue from customers in 2016.

2017

2016

432,997
162,640
270,357
44,747

442,262
151,125
291,137
39,753

477,743

482,015

Additionally, in 2016 there were several exceptional factors
that had a negative impact on costs in that year (see also
Note 6.2).
Finally, there is an increase in revenue from customers in
the segment of activities outside the Management
Agreement.
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Segment reporting

Segment reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organised in two operational segments.
On the one hand, operating activities are performed under the concession arrangement (Management Agreement) with the
Flemish Region (supra-municipal sanitation). On the other hand, activities are carried out on behalf of Flemish towns, cities
and municipalities (municipal sanitation). In the second segment, the Group is in direct competition with other sewer
operators. Via the subsidiary Aquaplus, the Group also serves industry in Flanders and carries out consultancy assignments
abroad on a limited scale.

IN FIGURES
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)
Concession arrangement

Activities outside the
Concession Agreement

Total

Flemish Region

Cities, towns &
municipalities

Other

267,756
9,280
2,719,699
2,449,500

42,035
603
34,918
28,207

833
81
5,598
2,296

310,624
9,964
2,760,215
2,480,003

270,385
7,364
2,734,912
2,461,945

37,146
1,076
35,109
33,049

2,055
96
5,939
2,708

309,586
8,536
2,775,960
2,497,702

AS AT 31/12/2017
Services rendered
Profit before taxes from continuing operations
Assets
Liabilities
AS AT 31/12/2016
Services rendered
Profit before taxes from continuing operations
Assets
Liabilities

73

74

Annual Report IFRS 2017

Related party
disclosures
In 2017, the following remuneration was awarded to managers in key positions:

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The total gross remuneration paid for 2017 to the members of the Management Committee, including the CEO, amounts to:
•
•
•
•

basic salary: 1,039,207.21 euros
variable part: 178,701.43 euros
pension entitlements: 147,036.50 euros
other remuneration components: 169,987.10 euros

The variable remuneration for the 2017 ﬁnancial year will be paid in 2018 in the form of warrants.

Specific notes required under the Companies Code

Speciﬁc notes required
under the Companies Code

EMPLOYMENT BY OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY AT YEAR-END:
(IN THOUSANDS OF EUROS)

Directors
White-collar staff
TOTAL

2017

2016

7.0
983.4

7.0
941.9

990.4

948.9

Remuneration granted to directors: See above
No advances or loans were provided to directors by the Group or any of the companies of the Group.
Total amount of salaries granted to directors of the consolidated company for the ﬁnancial year: 136,332 euros.
The fees paid to the statutory auditor for the statutory audit of the ﬁnancial statements of the Group amount to 60,000 euros
(excluding VAT) and are index-linked annually.
The services of the statutory auditor were requested in connection with the audit of our EMIR reporting – required by
the FSMA – in 2017. A fee of 9,100 euros (excluding VAT) was paid for these services. A number of special tasks were also
assigned to the statutory auditor or persons with whom he collaborates on a professional basis. The total fees for this
amounted to 214,855 euros (excluding VAT).
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the 2017 ﬁnancial year include the following companies:
• Aquaﬁn NV, Dijkstraat 8, 2630 Aartselaar, Belgium
(company number: 0440 691 388)
• Aquaplus NV, Ingberthoeveweg 21, 2630 Aartselaar, Belgium
(company number: 0462 755 821)
• Geo-Aquaplus BVBA, Lammerdries 18, 2440 Geel, Belgium
(company number: 0638 985 421)
The group stake in this company amounts to 75%
• Business unit Riopact, De Watergroep, Vooruitgangstraat 189, 1030 Brussels
(company number: 0224 771 467)
The group stake in the joint operation amounts to 50%
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To develop reliable waste water
and stormwater management,
tailored to our customers’
requirements, with respect
for those around us
and the environment.
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